
 

1 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 

DATE:  TUESDAY, AUGUST 13, 2024 

TIME:    1:00 P.M.  

LOCATION:   NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE –  TIMBERWOLF CONFERENCE CENTE R/D100, 

  1000 W. CAMPUS DRIVE, WAUSAU, WI 54401 AND VIA ZOOM 

(ZOOM MEETING ID: 864 3331 5030 | PASSWORD: 278599) 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

A. Compliance with Open Meetings Law (Wis. Stat. 19.81-19.88) 

B. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  

C. Public Comment 

Public Comment periods are not considered to be public hearings or a forum for public debate. 
No person may speak more than once to an issue or for a period longer than three (3) minutes. 
Individuals wishing to speak during this period must complete the sign-in form at the meeting 
location no less than fifteen (15) minutes prior to the start of the meeting. The total amount of 
time devoted to public comment at any given meeting will not exceed thirty (30) minutes unless 
extended by a majority vote of the Board. 

ORGANIZATIONAL ITEMS 

A. Oath of Office for Appointed District Board Member – Nikki Kopp 

a. Sherry Bunten 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Approval of Minutes from July 8, 2024, Board of Trustees Organizational + Regular Meeting  

ACTION ITEMS 

A. Approval of President’s 2024-2025 Goals – Jeannie Worden  

B. Approval of Proposed Three-Year Facilities Plan – Cher Vink  

C. Approval of Board Policy 2.8: Board Members Role 

CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. Approval of Consent Voting Agenda Including:  

a. Receipts + Expenditures  

b. Personnel Changes  

1/98

https://ntc.zoom.us/j/86433315030?pwd=qtSpLHnkztdgZENcD5IT24i2L07xNh.1


 

2 

 

BOARD DEVELOPMENT 

A. Workforce Training + Professional Development (WTPD) – Brad Gast 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

A. President’s Report  

a. Board Dashboard: 2023-2024 Year-End Report (Handout) – Katie Felch 

b. WTCS State Board Meeting at NTC: September 10-11, 2024 

c. Comments from Informational Update  

B. Chairperson’s Report  

a. Next Regular NTC Board Meeting: Tuesday, September 17, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. 

b. WTC DBA Fall Meeting: November 20-22, 2024 at Fox Valley Technical College (FVTC - 
Appleton) + Zoom 

C. Information  

a. Advisory Meeting Minutes 

b. Upcoming Meetings + Events 

c. Good News 

MEETING ADJOURN 

 

Note: Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 
Wisconsin’s “Open Meetings Law”.  

 

Mission: Northcentral Technical College enriches our communities by providing high quality learner and 
employer focused educational pathways that transform lives. 

2/98



 

 
 
1000 W. Campus Drive 
Wausau, WI 54401-1899 
888.682.7144 | 715.675.3331 
www.ntc.edu 

Dr. Jeannie Worden, President 

2024-2025 President Goals 
*Goals are based on the College’s 2024-2029 Strategic Plan.   

 
1. Build on collaborative partnerships with local communities, businesses, 

K12, government and workforce development to adapt to ever changing 
needs, strengthen the community and capitalize on shared opportunities 
for economic growth and prosperity.  
 

2. Strengthen a data-informed culture that effectively aligns resources with 
service and program needs and ensures a fiscally responsible, balanced and 
sustainable budget. 

 
3. Lead and empower the development and enhancement of leading-edge 

learning environments and support student success.  
 

4. Participate in professional development opportunities that will support 
growth in my role as President. 

 

3/98



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 

 
MEETING DATE: August 13, 2024 
 
TOPIC:  Proposed Three-Year Facilities Plan 2025-2027 
 
POLICY: Wisconsin Statute 38.04 (10) requires each Wisconsin Technical College District to prepare and 
submit a Three-Year Plan to the Wisconsin Technical College System Board (WTCBS). The plan must be 
approved by the District Board. The plan will be accepted and reviewed by the WTCSB but no action will be 
taken. 
 
INTERPRETATION:  Northcentral Technical College’s Three-Year Plan is submitted for the  
District Board of Trustees review and approval.  
 
DATA/RESULTS:  The Three-Year Plan for 2025-2027 outlines projects for the current fiscal year and 
proposed capital improvements, acquisitions, remodeling and new construction exceeding $50,000 but not 
greater than $1,500,000 pursuant to s. 38.04 (10). The Three-Year Plan informs the WTCS Office of 
potential plans but does not ask for permission to proceed. Each project must be approved on a project-
by-project basis following requirements set forth in WTCS administrative policy. 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:       PROPOSED MOTION: 
Regular Voting Agenda The Board approve Northcentral Technical 

College’s Proposed Three-Year Facilities Plan 
2025-2027. 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
 
 
Signed                                           Dated ____8/13/2024____________ 

4/98



1 

  www.ntc.edu 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Three-Year Facilities Plan  
 FY 2024 – 2025  
 FY 2025 – 2026  
 FY 2026 – 2027  

 

 

 

5/98



2 

  www.ntc.edu 

Introduction 
 
The Northcentral Technical College (NTC) Board of Trustees understands the workforce needs of the 
district’s businesses and industries, and the desire of its citizens to live in safe and economically resilient 
communities. Through constant contact with community members, community forums with 
stakeholders, and strategic planning, the College will ensure its plans and goals are aligned with the 
future growth and innovation needs of our students, employees, and district communities. Further, the 
NTC Board of Trustees understands the College must have the facilities necessary for student and staff 
growth, productivity, health, safety, and success and the infrastructure critical for expansion of space, 
technology, and programming. 
 
The Three-Year Facilities Plan aligns with the College’s 2024-29 Strategic Plan and supports its goals to 
expand comprehensive support to ensure learner success; foster a leading edge academic learning 
environment that supports student outcomes and embraces interdisciplinary learning and state of the 
art technology; build on collaborative partnerships to adapt to ever changing needs; and effectively use 
resources to enhance future stability.  
 
The Plan also addresses current trends of higher education as a result of our nation’s economic climate. 
Changes from physical expansion to online learning, challenging enrollments, increased costs of 
maintaining and adding physical space, supply chain and labor shortages are all continuing to have a 
negative impact on completing facility projects. This Plan takes into account these trends and still 
provides state-of-the-art facilities including Industry 4.0 projects in agriculture, health, transportation, 
and public safety while ensuring our learners are learning in innovative spaces on the most advanced 
equipment and technology. 
 
The following pages outline the Three-Year Facilities Plan for Fiscal Years 24-25 to 26-27 that support the 
College’s Strategic Plan. 

 
 
 

 
 
Jeannie Worden  

President 

Northcentral Technical College | 1000 W. Campus Drive, Wausau, WI 54401 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/98



3 

  www.ntc.edu 

Project Summary 
 

FY2024 – 2025 
 
Additions/Acquisitions 
Antigo Single Site 

 Merrill CDL Addition (FY2023-24 Funds)  
 

Wausau Single Site 

 Ag Center Vestibule Addition 

 Dental Therapy Addition  

 Transportation 4.0 – Diesel CNG Addition  

 Wausau Emergency Services Training Center Addition 
 
Remodeling/Renovation 
Wausau Campus 

 CHS Dental Renovation  

 D Building Renovation (PS Classrooms/Corridor/Student Life)  

 WTPD Training Rooms 
 
Improvements 
Wausau Campus 

 Ag Center Pond Dredging 

 Alternative Fuel Boiler Upgrades 

 Apprenticeship Classroom/Lab Improvements  

 Cafeteria Table Replacement  

 CHS HVAC Upgrades Phase II 

 Corridor Carpet Replacement 

 Custodial Equipment 

 E Parking Lot/Motorcycle Resurfacing 

 Elevator Control Panel Upgrades 

 Emergency Services Deck Replacement  

 Emergency Services Furniture  

 General Facility Contingency  

 H Building AHU Replacement  

 H Building Corridor Finishes  

 H Building Roof Replacement 

 Protective Glass Replacement 

 Sidewalk & Curb Replacement 
 
Regional Campuses 

 Phillips Splash Tower Replacement 

 Merrill CSSC Improvements 
 

 

 

7/98



4 

  www.ntc.edu 

FY2025 – 2026 

 

Additions/Acquisitions 
Wausau Single Site 

 Ag Heifer Barn Addition/Third Calf Pin  
 
Remodeling/Renovation 
Wausau Campus 

 A Building WTPD Lease Office Renovation 

 Accommodations/Testing/Security Renovation 

 Ag Warehouse (HVAC/Insulation/Classroom/Restrooms) 

 CHS Stairs Upgrade  

 Student Advising Center  

 WTPD Exterior Entrance & Lobby 
 
 
Improvements 
Wausau Campus 

 Ag Culvert/Roads 

 Ag Center Vet Tech Entrance Windbreak  

 Ag South Field Drain Tile 

 Alt High Improvements (Old WTPD Offices)  

 G Building Chiller Refurbish (Main Building Chiller)  

 Auto Service Area Blacktop Resurfacing  

 B Parking Lot/Curb Replacement  

 CHS Landscaping  

 CHS Roof Top Chiller Replacement  

 Corridor Carpet Replacement  

 F & G Building Roof Replacement  

 F Building AHU Fan Wall  

 General Facility Contingency 

 High Tech Conference Room 

 HR Reconfiguration 

 HVAC Controls A & F Buildings  

 IT Reception & Training Room Upgrade 

 Sustainability 

 Shipping Fork Lift  

 Sidewalk & Curb Replacement 
 

 
Regional Campuses 

 Antigo Boiler Replacement 

 Culinary Kitchen (Antigo)  

 Phillips Welding Dust Collection  

 Merrill CSSM Parking Lot & Exterior Façade 

8/98



5 

  www.ntc.edu 

FY2026 – 2027 

 
Additions/Acquisitions 
Wausau Single Site 

 Ag Center Event Building 
 

Remodeling 
Wausau Campus 

 iTEC Renovation 
 

Improvements 
Wausau Campus 

 A Building Window Replacement  

 Ag Center Coverall Building Concrete 

 Ag Center Overhead Door Replacement 

 AG Electronic Entrance Gate  

 C & B Roof Replacement  

 Corridor Carpet Replacement 

 Custodial Equipment  

 Fleet Vehicles 

 G Building AHU Replacement  

 General Facility Contingency  

 Library Window Replacement 

 Main Road/Curb Replacement 

 Maintenance Equipment 

 Sidewalk Replacement 

 Sustainability 
 
Regional Campuses 

 Medford or Phillips Culinary Kitchen 

 Antigo Roof Replacement 

 Antigo Wood Tech Staining 

 Phillips Exterior Painting 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9/98



6 

  www.ntc.edu 

Three-Year Budget Summary 

 
Budget Summary 
 
 
 

FY2024-25 
 
                                               Additions/Acquisitions:      $ 2,875,000 

    Remodeling:        $ 1,140,000 
Improvements:    $ 3,160,000 
Total:     $ 7,175,000 

 
 

FY2025-26 
 

Additions/Acquisitions:   $     275,000 
Remodeling:    $  2,150,000 
Improvements:    $  4,045,000 

   Total:                      $  6,470,000 
 
 

FY2026-27 
 

       Additions/Acquisitions:     $  1,325,000 
   Remodeling:                     $     400,000 

Improvements:    $  3,730,000 
Total:                   $  5,455,000 

 

10/98



 

1 
 

 

 

 

Board Members Role 

 

Board Policy 2.8 

 

 

The Board of Northcentral Technical College functions as a collective body. The success of the Board 
depends on each individual Board member exercising responsibility through positive actions in the 
following areas:  

 Being effective at Board meetings through appropriate preparation, regular attendance, and 
active participation in Board discussions and willingness to volunteer for officer assignments and 
other Board tasks.  

 Understanding and supporting the Board governance concept and Board policies.  

 Being knowledgeable concerning the College means for accomplishing organization, budget, 
accreditation, facilities, instructional programs, student services, and key processes.  

 Being knowledgeable concerning the organization of the Wisconsin Technical College System 
and applicable state statutes.  

 Being familiar with major district, state, and national issues affecting the College.  

 Engaging in Board and self-development activities designed to promote Board effectiveness 
through attendance at state, regional, and national Board association meetings and by utilizing 
resources available in the College.  

 Attending College events such as: graduation ceremonies, ribbon cutting ceremonies, legislative 
events, etc.  

 Representing the College to the community in a positive image.  

 Being active in legislative advocacy on behalf of the College.  

 Regularly attend Board meetings and retreats to participate in and understand consensus 
building, stakeholder representation, in-depth College knowledge, and goal setting.  

o Board members who request to be excused from attending the meeting are required to 
notify the Executive Assistant to the President + Board at least 24 hours in advance.  

o Any Board member who has more than two unexcused absences or more than three 
excused absences from the regular monthly board meetings in a calendar year will be 
asked to meet with the Board Chair to discuss their Board engagement requirements.   

Created and Reviewed on 02/07/2023 
Reviewed and Approved on 03/07/2023 
Reviewed on 07/08/2024 
 

11/98



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
MEETING DATE: August 13, 2024 
 
TOPIC:   Receipts & Expenditures 
  
POLICY 1.1 – Presidential Expectations – The President, in execution of his/her duties, shall not cause or 
allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either irresponsible or in viola-
tion of commonly accepted business and professional ethics, or that results in failure to be accredited by 
the Higher Learning Commission 
 
INTERPRETATION: To avoid violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics NTC will fol-
low Wisconsin statute 38.12 District Board Duties (2) “…All expenditures exceeding $2500 shall be ap-
proved by the district board.”  Also, in compliance with Wisconsin statute 38.12(4) District board duties, 
“The publication proceedings shall include a statement of receipts and expenditures in the aggregate.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: The following Status of Funds listing receipts and expenditures including operating trans-
fers in the aggregate is included for informational purposes as of June 30, 2024 (preliminary). 
 
 
F1-F7 Revenue:                   $106,800,478.49 
F1-F7 Expense:                    $100,235,863.93 
 

 
 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:       PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
Signed:         Dated:   August 13, 2024 

 

12/98



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
MEETING DATE:    August 13, 2024 
 

TOPIC:        Personnel Changes 
 
 

POLICY 1.1 – Presidential Expectations – The President, in execution of his/her duties, shall not cause or 
allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either irresponsible or in viola-
tion of commonly accepted business and professional ethics, or that results in failure to be accredited by 
the Higher Learning Commission. 
 

INTERPRETATION: NTC will follow Wisconsin Statute 38.12 (3) “The district board shall employ and fix the com-
pensation…” and Wisconsin Statute 118.22 (2) “…No teacher may be employed… except by a majority vote of 
the full membership of the board.  Nothing in this section prevents the modification or termination of a con-
tract by mutual agreement of the teacher and the board.” 
 

DATA/RESULTS: A request is made to approve the following personnel changes: 
 

New Hires: 

 Tyler Litman – Faculty, English Language Learning 

 Jodan Thao – Specialist, Financial Aid 

 Jared Porter – Specialist, Student Engagement 

 Skye Mucha – Coordinator, Student Resource 

 Erin Schilling – Instructional Designer  

 Kerri Ison – Assistant, College Store 

 Joshua Lauermann – Custodian, Floors 
 
Resignations: 

 Brenda Alberts – Faculty, Dental Hygiene 

 Taylor Polka – Assistant Manager, Farm 

 Maria Pernsteiner – Learning Coordinator, Health Sciences & Community Services 
 
Separations:  

 Sarah Hollatz – Accountant, Foundation 
 

 
 

AGENDA CATEGORY:     PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                                  (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as of 
this date. 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated ___       8/13/2024______________ 

13/98



 

Page 1 of 4 

 

WIOA/NTC Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes  
Date: May 4, 2024 

Time: 1:00 p.m. – 2:30 p.m. 
Location: Zoom 

 

Attendees 

 
Industry Members: 

• Patricia Noland – Director, Department of Vocational Rehabilitation  

• Brian Kalish - Director, North Central Wisconsin Workforce Development Board 

• Robert Bauer – FSC – WIOA Career Planner 

• Colt Nicklaus – FSC – WIOA Team Lead 

• Nicky Lindman – FSC – WIOA Career Planner 

• Nikki Ogstad – FSC – WIOA Career Planner 

• Tiaree McDonald – FSC – WIOA Career Planner 

• Keele Westcott – DWD DVR – Vocational Rehabilitation Specialist 
 
NTC Team: 

• Sara Bartelt – Associate Dean, School of Liberal Arts Transfer, Education & General Studies 

• Brooke Schindler – Dean, School of Liberal Arts Transfer, Education, General Studies, & Business 

• Matt Hoenecke – Academic Transitions Advisor 

• Kellie Bales – Adult Education Faculty 

• Kari Lazers – Director, Student Services 

• Ben Bliese – Coordinator, Career & Employer Services 

• Angela Reimer – Compliance Coordinator, Program Development 

• Barb Juliano – Instructional Assistant, Marathon County Jail, Marathon County Job Center, 
Community Partners Campus 

• Kathy Krause – AE Program Director, GED/HSED Advisor, AE Faculty; Wausau NTC 

• Nick Lampone – Director of Enrollment 

• Jerry Xiong – College Prep Center Assistant 

• Jeff Cichon – Director, Financial Aid 

• MaiGer Moua – Promise & Student Success Advisor  

• Lindsey Zakrzewski – Testing & Accommodations Coordinator 

 

Agenda Item 1: Welcome & Introductions 

Brooke Schindler, Dean of School of Liberal Arts Transfer, Education, General Studies & Business at 
Northcentral Technical College welcomed everyone to the meeting and thanked them for attending. 

Everyone in attendance introduced themselves. 
 

Agenda Item 2: Update & Highlights from Last Meeting 

The group was given a few minutes to review the minutes from the previous meeting. 

The meeting minutes were approved by all. 
 

14/98



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

Agenda Item 3: College-Wide Initiatives 

 

Brooke Schindler – Dean, School of Liberal Arts Transfer, Education, General Studies, & Business 
presented the following College-Wide Initiative Power Point to the Advisory Committee. 

Advisory Committee 

PowerPoint Spring 2024 FINAL.pdf
 

 

Agenda Item 4: Instructional Area/Program 

A. Industry Trends 
 

Colt:   
Transportation and healthcare sectors have been the career choices among participants. The 
Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA) and CDL program has been very popular. Early Childhood 
Education has also gained attention. COW Grant has been extended until December 31st. The STC 
and WAI grants will be ending this summer. 
 
Nikki Ogstad:   
The cohort last week Monday had 23 participants. Potentially looking to set up a conference with 
the State to get an extension for the QUEST grant to be funded another year. 
 
Nicky Lindman:   
Focused on supporting the young adults that are graduating high school. Particularly focusing on 
mental health services as there are concerns about potential isolation and challenges, they may face 
during this time. Will be pushing to ensure mental health support is accessible and effective. 
 
Tiaree:   
There’s been an increasing number of people interested in the CNA and CDL certifications. Would 
like more information on NTC’s English language proficiency (ELL Program) requirements for our 
refugee population that are interested.  
 
Brian:   
The COW Grant has been extended and yes, the STC and WAI grant will be ending. The crew has 
been doing a good job with the enrollment process, primarily for the CNA Program. 
 
Bob:   
Small inquires on small engine and powersports classes. No offers recently and there are only three 
training providers listed when searched. 
 
Keele:   
Significant increase in referrals recently. Enrollments in CPA Grant and Career Pathways is ongoing. 
Had a successful collaboration with the WIOA team with the available funding. Recently had a very 
informative and interesting tour of NTC’s Agriculture Center of Excellence that went great. 
 

 

15/98



 

Page 3 of 4 

 

B. Program Information  
 

a. Enrollment Update:  
Sara: 
Barb from the Marathon County Job Center is acknowledged for her work with individuals. So 
far this spring, they have served 13 students through workshops and other educational services. 
Barb has assisted individuals with obtaining their high school credentials, reading courses, basic 
computer skills, and job search and employability skills. They are proud of the progress and 
impact of these efforts.  

 
 

b. New Programs (currently offered): 
 

Angela Reimer presented the following New Programs (currently offered) to the Advisory Committee: 

• Medical Administrative Professional Associate Degree (Spring 24) 61 credits 

• Respiratory Therapy Associate Degree (Fall 24) 67 credits 

• Agronomy Associate Degree (Fall 24) 65 credits 

• Agronomy Technician Embedded Technical Diploma (Fall 24) 30 credits 

• Individual Tax Preparer Certificate (Fall 24) 16 credits 
 

b. New Programs (Proposed) 
 

Angela Reimer presented the following New Programs (Proposed) to the Advisory Committee: 

• Lube Technician Embedded Technical Diploma (Fall 24) 

• Auto Service Technician Embedded Technical Diploma (Fall 24) 

• Advocacy & Social Justice Specialist Technical Diploma (Fall 25) 

• Expanded Function Dental Auxiliary (EFDA) Technical Diploma (Fall 24) 

• Dental Therapy Associate Degree (Fall 25) 

C. Curriculum/Assessment 
 

a. OER Health Curriculum 
Kathy: 
Been working on a 5-year plan to revamp the HSED program. By July of this year a new, more 
advanced health curriculum will be replacing the outdated one from 1989 that we’ve been 
utilizing. The new curriculum uses open educational resources, meaning free for students and 
allows flexibility for updates and adaptations.  
 

  

16/98



 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 
b. HSED Competency Completion Proposal 
Kathy: 
There will be updates to the HSED 509 option to include a credit for prior learning approach, 
offering various paths for students to earn their high school credits based on their backgrounds 
and competencies. This approach has already led to quicker completion times for some 
students. Overall, these changes aim to provide more opportunities and flexibility for students 
pursuing their high school credentials. 

 
D. Focus Discussion Item 1: Welcome Matt Hoenecke 

 
Brooke Schindler – Dean, School of Liberal Arts Transfer, Education, General Studies, & Business 
welcomes and introduces our new member Matt Hoenecke, Academic Transitions Advisor to the 
Advisory Committee. 

 

Agenda Item 6: Future Agenda Discussions/Next Meeting Date & Time 

Next meeting: Tuesday, July 23rd 11:00am –1 2:30pm via In-Person 
At NTC Wausau Campus, Room A208 

17/98



2024 Spring Dental Therapy Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Date: May 17, 2024  
Time: 12:00 pm-1:30 pm  
Location:  4011 & Zoom 

Zoom Meeting Link: https://ntc.zoom.us/j/84187456066 

Attendees 
Industry Members:  

• Dr. William Akey, DDS - Supervising Dentist, NTC ZOOM 
• Dr. Nathan Daily, DDS - Chief Dental Officer, Family Health La Clinica 
• Jordan Kolstad - Regional Director of Operations, Family Health La Clinica 
• Paula Rew, RDH - Office Manager, MPC Endodontics 
• Karen Turner, RDH - Dental Practice Manager, Bridge Community Health Clinic  
• Dr. Thomas Treweek, DDS- Athens Dental Clinic 
• Dr. Helen Tsao, DDS - Endodontist, MPC Endodontics 
• Melissa Weasner- Director of Operations, Family Health La Clinica 

NTC Team:  
• Leah Attoms - Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences & Community Services ZOOM 
• Deb Koziel, RDH - Program Director & Dental Faculty 

• Aleena Lepak, RDH - Dental Faculty 

• Jordyn Olson - Advisor, Student Services 

• Maria Pernsteiner - Learning Coordinator, Health Sciences & Community Services 

• Dr. Angela Roesler - Dean, Health Sciences and Community Services 

• Jen Sawvell - Manager, Dental Clinic and Health Central Supply 

• Sandie Shorey – Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences & Academic Excellence 

• Jana Swenson, RDH - Dental Faculty 

• Dr. Richard Wilkosz - Science Faculty ZOOM 
 

Welcome Introductions  
 

Meeting called to order by Dean of Health Sciences and Community Services, Dr. Angela Roesler, at 12:02 pm. Dr. Angela 
Roesler welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the Dental Therapy Advisory Committee and thanked them for 
attending. Sandie distributed a notebook to each individual as a thank you gift for participating on the committee. The 
meeting began with introductions.  

Dental Therapy Advisory Committee Role and Responsibilities 
Dr. Roesler explained the purpose of the Dental Therapy Advisory Committee and reviewed the role and 
responsibilities of committee members.  

• Purpose 
o Provide a mutual exchange of information for  

 improving the program  
 recruiting qualified students 
 meeting employment needs of the community  

o NTC personnel should participate in the meetings as non-voting members to receive 
advice and assistance. 
 

18/98



• Responsibilities of the Advisory Committee 
Per CODA Dental Therapy Standard 1-12: The purpose of an active liaison mechanism is to 
provide a mutual exchange of information for improving the program, recruiting qualified 
students and meeting employment needs of the community. The responsibilities of the 
advisory body should be defined in writing and the program director, faculty, and 
appropriate institution personnel should participate in the meetings as non-voting members 
to receive advice and assistance. 

 Guidance on curriculum development 
o Provide valuable insights and guidance on the development and 

refinement of the program's curriculum. 
o Offer feedback on course content, clinical experiences, and educational 

resources to ensure alignment with industry standards, emerging trends, 
and best practices in dental therapy 

 Identify workforce needs 
o Assess current and future workforce needs 
o Help to ensure that program graduates possess the knowledge, skills, and 

competencies required for successful employment 
 Support student success 

o Provide feedback on student learning outcomes 
o Advise on internship and job placement opportunities 
o Offer mentorship and networking opportunities 

 Promote community engagement 
o Assist in fostering partnerships and collaborations between NTC and 

external stakeholders 
o Promote community engagement, service-learning opportunities, and 

applied research initiatives. 
 Advocate for program needs 

o Advocate for programmatic needs, resources, and priorities within the 
college administration, industry associations, and relevant governmental 
agencies to support program growth and development 
 

College-Wide Initiatives  
Power Point of College-Wide Initiatives was reviewed by Dr. Roesler, including discussion of new programs 
Medical Administrative Professional AD, Sterile Processing Technician Certificate and the newly developed 
Respiratory Therapy program. Additional items discussed include: NTC Accreditation (HLC Accreditation 
Update-NTC received full re-accreditation), Central WI Science and Engineering Festival, Dental Program 
Highlights, an update on the Sawmill Wood Technology Center for Excellence expansion (partnership with 
UWSP), and an update on the Forensic Science Center (ground breaking May 2024 with a construction process 
of up to one year). Dr. Roesler also reviewed Student Support resources available, including Health Services via 
Telehealth. The committee was introduced to Dental Therapy and Expanded Function Dental Auxiliary (EFDA), 
two new program opportunities the college is currently work on. 

19/98



 

Workforce Training and Professional Development  
o Local Anesthesia (LA) Refresher  

 On-site of specific office requesting the refresher 
 4-hour refresher course; 6-12 participants 
 1-hour Lecture material; 3-hours Hands on Experience 
 Target Audience- Registered Dental Hygienists 
 Purpose: Having a hygienist administer the local anesthetic saves time for the dentist, who then can spend 

more time on restorative and more productive procedures.   
o Fluoride Varnish Training 

 On-site of specific office requesting the refresher 
 1-hour Introduction (printed/PPT) & Hands-on Experience 
 Target Audience- Physicians & Medical Staff 
 Purpose: This brief overview includes rational, contraindication, application process, and post-op 

instructions. An application demonstration will be provided along with observation and feedback for staffing 
application. The only additional materials needed would be a box of fluoride varnish. Jen Sawvell provided the 
brand name information. Arrangements are being finalized. 

 Let the Clinic know if you would like to bring a course or refresher to your site. The cost varies- it is 
dependent on factors such as attendance, the professional presenting, supplies, and location. 

The Workforce team has also been focusing on offering Life Enrichment & Community Courses focusing on the 
following areas: art, dance, music and nature. Topics coming soon include: CPR/First Aid Certification, Creative Problem 
Solving: The Design Thinking Model, and Dance/Art/Beekeeping. 
 
To access this information, please visit www. ntc.edu, select “Workforce Training & Professional Development” from the top of the page. Flyers 
will be included in post meeting e-mail. 
 

Review of Wisconsin Senate Bill 689 
Dr. William Akey, Supervising Dentist for the NTC Dental Clinic, reviewed Wisconsin Senate Bill 689, making 
particular note of the following: 

• Senate Bill 689 signed by Governor Evers on January 31, 2024 
o Signed by Governor Evers at NTC on January 31, 2024 
o Introduced by Senator Felzkowski, Hutton, James, Marklein, Roys, Spreitzer, Testin, and 

Ballweg 
o Provides for the licensure of Dental Therapists 
o Includes the scope of practice 
o Specifies practice settings for Dental Therapists 

20/98



• See Appendix 1 for Scope of Practice and Practice Settings 
o Dental Therapist scope of practice 
o Dental Therapist compliance 

 Limit their practice to practicing in one or more dental health shortage areas. 
 If a dental therapist begins practicing in a dental health shortage area, and that area 

loses its designation as a dental health shortage area while the dental therapist 
continues to practice in that area, the dental therapist is considered to satisfy this 
subdivision as long as the dental therapist continues to practice in that area. 

 Must be under the direct supervision of practicing dentist, then can move to indirect 
supervision 

 An agreement will exist within the practice between the DT and the DDS 
 Practice in one or more settings in which at least 50 percent of the total patient base of the 

dental therapist consists of patients who are in the following specific groups: 
 Medical Assistance patients. 
 Uninsured patients. 
 Patients receiving dental care at free and charitable clinics. 
 Patients receiving dental care at federally qualified health centers. 
 Patients who reside in long-term care facilities. 
 Veterans. 
 Patients who are members of a federally recognized Indian tribe or band. 
 Patients receiving dental care at clinics or facilities located on tribal lands. 
 Patients with medical disabilities or chronic conditions that create barriers of access 

to dental care. 
 Emergency rules in place by 2025 to determine who will monitor the area DTs are  
 Submitting for accreditation by the end of June 

 Will be hiring 2.5 FTE to run this program 
 
Review of the Proposed NTC Curriculum (3 year/27 months by CODA standards) 
Dr. Akey, reviewed the admission requirements for the Dental Therapy Program. 
 
 As a prerequisite to program enrollment, an applicant must: 

o be a graduate of an accredited Dental Hygiene program through the Commission on Dental 
Accreditation (CODA); must be an RDH 

o be licensed as a Dental Hygienist by the Wisconsin State Board of Dental Examiners 
o hold certification in Local Anesthesia and Nitrous Oxide administration as granted by the 

State of Wisconsin DSPS 
o have at least two (2) years of full-time or equivalent (4,000 hours) of current clinical 

experience in Dental Hygiene 
o hold valid CPR/AED certification 

 
Dr. Akey also reviewed the following proposed NTC Curriculum and how the curriculum will be implemented 
at NTC for the Dental Therapy Program:  

o CODA requires that Dental Therapy curriculum “be at least three academic years of full-time 
instruction or its equivalent at the postsecondary college-level.” 

o WTCS has approved 86 total credits 
 20 General Education credits (same gen-eds as Dental Hygiene) 
 66 Dental Therapy program credits 
 See Appendix 2 (next diagram) 

    

21/98



Appendix 2 

 
              Implementation- Fall 2025 

o Dental Therapy-3-year program: Accreditation is in process through CODA 
o Approved 2024/Development 2024-25/Implementation 2025-26 

     Admissions Requirements 

*state funds are not yet 
released.   
**interview process of degree 
candidates is required by CODA 
*required basic sciences are 
only if they are needed 
*dental management of 
medically compromised 
patient-to give students a good 
background of compromised 
patients 

*Dental Therapy Clinic refers 
to our onsite clinic at    NTC 
 

Clinical Opportunities for NTC Dental Therapy Students 
• Types of clinical experiences needed  

o A variety of clinical sites are needed 
o Members were referred to Sandie if interested in being a site for student 
o Potential sites: 

 Family Health La Clinica 
 Bridge Community Health Clinic 
 Athens Dental Clinic 

 

22/98



• Identify clinical sites for the Dental Therapy program (Community Clinics-outside of NTC) 
o No classroom space needed at these sites 
o Qualified Dentist- one who holds a WI license 

 College will look at the experiential aspect 
 Industry Partner gave an example of a 5-year threshold for Provider Competency purposes 

 
• Clinical hours per semester and course 

o Off-site clinic experiences will begin in the fourth semester 
 

Industry Trends 

o Need is huge and there is lots of opportunity 
 Hygiene shortage is impacting all 
 The DTs will help to fill the gap that exists currently 
 EFDA will also be very helpful 
 Referral-complicated when an emergency takes place 

 Oral surgery is almost non-existent here right now 
 Endo-mostly self-pay 

 Concern was brought up about what happens after the direct supervision once practices 
are allowed to let the DT practice without supervision 

 Will this lead to practices opening up satellite offices 300 miles away with 
no practicing dentist available if an emergency occurs  

 Dentists would want them in close proximity for liability reasons 
o We will begin to host community information sessions 
o Are we hearing any push back from private practice 

 Not much right now 
 Once public understands the scope of practice, there will be even less 
 More than enough patients out there who need care; a partnership 
 The foundations that are built in the beginning are so important and essential; ethics 

and quality of care are important aspects of this professional 
o $120,000 per year is the wage information we are seeing currently out of MN 

 Hard to keep practices going in the rural areas, so it may be difficult for these rural 
clinics to support the salaries that come with this added layer of care 

 
Other Discussion 
What opportunities do you foresee with the introduction of Dental Therapy in Wisconsin? 

o What challenges or concerns do you anticipate with the implementation of Dental Therapy? 
 8:00-5:00 (possibly 6:00); four-days per week 
 This program is a full-time commitment 

o Will there be an opportunity for the DT students to go out to community dental providers who 
work with the underserved dental communities?  
 Required meetings of candidates to bring their awareness to the fact that they will be a 

mid-level dental provider in an area of great need 
 The application and interview process will also provide some of this knowledge as well 

regarding the clientele that they will be serving (getting the right people in the right 
seats) 

o What do you need to advocate for Dental Therapy? 
 Example: Industry Impact Demonstrations 

23/98



 Invite industry representatives to share success stories from other regions where 
dental therapy has made a significant impact. 

 
Dental Supervision  

o Will patients be notified that they are being seen by a DT 
• When clinical sites have students, what will the notification look like to the 

patients that they are going to be seen by a DT 
• Dental Therapist 
• CODA does not care what degree is attached to it 

o This will follow the Associate Degree model 
o All accreditation standards must be met 
o Dr Akey likened this to the NP versus physician; medical model 
o The requirements for competencies are very prescriptive 
o Grad requirements plus competency-based evaluation 

 Gatekeeping mechanism in clinical setting at NTC 
 

o Direct Supervision 
• 1st year must be direct supervision 
• Can perform full comprehensive intake 

o Indirect Supervision 
 Dentist does not have to be in the same building 
 Liken it to the way RDH functions with the dentist 
 Most of this clientele will need a great deal of restoration that requires a great 

deal of training and experience 
 Training will continue on site as they gain experience 

Is Endodontics included in the curriculum 
o There will be curriculum regarding Endodontics, however the skills will not be included 

in this curriculum. 
Curriculum Options 

o The curriculum plan presented at the meeting shows both a 7-semester and a 3-year 
plan. The purpose of this is because we do not yet know which option CODA will 
approve; this is not meant to illustrate that there will be two different curriculum tracks 

o Petitioned WTCS for the number of credits 
o The “age” of the general requirements will be discussed with this group at the next 

meeting 
o Beginning with 12 students each fall; starting in their Community Clinical sites in their 4th 

semester 
o Exam in order to get their DT certification/license 
o Remodel  

o will allow for 12 units that are equipped with mannequin simulators 
o Dental Therapy will be housed in this smaller clinic setting but they will be 

interacting with all aspects of the clinic 
 

Next Meeting Schedule & Agenda Items Discussion  
The proposed date for the 2024 fall meeting was Friday, around the end of October, 2024 from 12:00pm-
1:30pm. The group will be notified via email of this date once fall approaches. Meeting adjourned at 1:22pm. 

24/98



2024 Spring Medical Assistant Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Date: May 29, 2024  
Time: 12:00 pm-1:30 pm  
Location:  4011 & Zoom 

Zoom Meeting Link: https://ntc.zoom.us/j/82184518761 

Attendees 
 

Industry Members:  
• Carrie Arrowood- Clinic Manager, Aspirus ZOOM 
• Juanmanuel Rocha- CMA, Marshfield Clinic 

 

NTC Team:  
• Laura Ahonen- Associate Dean of Allied Health and Human Services 
• Leah Attoms – Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences & Community Services 

• Mason Heldt- Learning Manager, Health Sciences & Community Services 

• Tim Hinke- Advisor, Student Success 

• Nicole Roberts- Program Director and Faculty, Medical Assistant 
 
 

Welcome Introductions  
 

Meeting called to order by Nicole Roberts, at 12:04 pm. Nicole welcomed everyone to the meeting and thanked them 
for attending. Everyone in attendance introduced themselves. 

Update and Highlights from Last Meeting 
Laura Ahonen, Associate Dean of Allied Health and Human Services, called for any changes to the minutes 
from the fall meeting (12.13.23) There were no changes made to the minutes from the fall meeting. 

• Previous suggestions explored 
• Changes Achieved  
• Shifts in changes 

 
College-Wide Initiatives  
Power Point of College-Wide Initiatives was reviewed by Associate Dean of Allied Health and Human Services, 
Laura Ahonen, including discussion of two new programs (Medical Administrative Professional AD and Sterile 
Processing Technician Certificate-a pipeline program to Surg Tech, as well as the newly developed Respiratory 
Therapy program).  

Additional items discussed include: NTC Accreditation (HLC Accreditation Update-NTC received full re-
accreditation), Dental Program Highlights, an update on the Sawmill Wood Technology Center for Excellence 
expansion (partnership with UWSP), an update on the Forensic Science Center (ground breaking May 2024 
with a construction process of up to 1 year), and Mind Trekkers.  She also reviewed Student Support resources 
available, including Health Services via Telehealth. 
 

25/98



 

 

*Let Sara know if you have a student in need. 
 

Program Goals & Learning Objectives  
• Reviewing and revising the Medical Assistant Program Goals 

o  The goal of the Medical Assistant Program is to prepare competent entry‐level medical 
assistants in the cognitive (knowledge), psychomotor (skills), and affective (behavior) 
learning domains. The NTC Medical Assistant Program is accredited by the Commission on 
Accreditation of Allied Health Programs (CAAHEP), on the recommendation of the Medical 
Assisting Education Review Board (MAERB). This means that the curriculum is carefully 
regulated to ensure that it includes essential components and meets standards mandated by 
this organization. Accreditation allows the graduates of our medical assistant program to 
complete the national certification examination administered by the American Association of 
Medical Assistants. When graduates successfully complete this examination, they are known 
as Certified Medical Assistants and may use the title CMA. 
 

Workforce Training and Professional Development Initiatives 

Laura spoke briefly, in the absence of WTPD staff, about the Workforce team offerings. WTPD has been 
focusing on offering Life Enrichment & Community Courses such as Art courses, dance courses, music courses 
and nature courses. Topics coming soon include: CPR/First Aid Certification, Creative Problem Solving: The 
Design Thinking Model, and Dance/Art/Beekeeping. If you are interested in finding a new hobby, or honing 
your skills, check these classes out! 
 
She also sparked discussion on the following: 

• Reformatting of Bi-Annual Conference 
• Apprenticeship Updates 

o Nicole clarified that the MA program will not be discussing an apprenticeship program for the 
near future as there has been little to no interest from the industry partners and therefore is 
not on the list of important efforts for the current moment.  

 
To access this information, please visit www. ntc.edu, select “Workforce Training & Professional Development” from the 
top of the page. Flyers will be included in the post meeting e-mail. 
 
 

26/98



Industry Trends 
• Any new changes or modifications in the clinics 

o There have been a lot of mental health visits as of late, rather than physical.  
• Staffing Needs for Medical Assistants  

o Huge demand 
o One issue with the current field environment is that, in a lot of cases, an RN can do similar 

things as a Certified MA. However, a Certified MA is still preferred because of the 
background knowledge and differing education.  

o Clinics are short staffed with MAs the way things are so although bringing new MAs in is the 
goal, there is not enough time to help continue training those people.  
 A lot of clinics are coming up with “creative” ways of getting that training in: short 

term trainings, mentorships, having positions move into MA fields through training 
through the clinic, tuition reimbursement, grants towards schooling 

o Pay in the field is also tricky because if someone is a receptionist, but is working towards 
becoming an MA through the clinic, they will most likely get to a point where they’re 
making more money in the receptionist position compared to the MA starting pay.  

o Issues with some places requiring “Certified” MAs, which cuts off a whole pool of eligible 
MAs that have credentials but aren’t certified. 

o Issues with requirements of “registered,” or “certified” compared to “credentialed” MAs;  
the names are trademarked, depending on the organization they tested with. The exams 
and tests are the same; just different eligibility routes in order to qualify to take the exam. 

o The pay raises for someone to get Certified/Registered has not been worth the time and 
money of getting that Certification in the first place- no real incentive to take this extra step.  

o Essentially, MAs are not being used to their full capacity; when they are, they are not paid 
accordingly.  

• New skills or equipment in the clinic setting‐none 
 

Program Updates- Monitoring Needs and Expectations 
Medical Assistant Program Director, Nicole Roberts, shared the following Program Updates:     
 

• Graduate Surveys 
o Practicum Resources 
o Practicum Sites 

• Employer Surveys 
o Feedback has been positive. They feel as MAs are coming in educated and prepared.  

• Enrollment and Retention  
o Fall 2023 

 13 Fall ‘23 starts 
 3 graduates 

o Spring 2024 
 5 Spring ‘24 starts 
 8 graduates (fall 23 cohort) 

• 2023 and 2024 to date CMA (AAMA) Exam Results 
o Fall 22 

 6 grads (Spring ‘22 cohort) 
 100% pass rate! 

27/98



o Students do also get information back from the exam regarding the areas they 
answered/performed incorrectly (if applicable)  

o Spring 23 
 8 grads (Fall ‘22 cohort) 
 6 sat for CMA exam 
 4 passed (66%) 
 2 obtained RMA (AMT) credential 

o Fall 23 
 3 grads (spring ‘23 cohort) 
 2 sat for CMA exam 
 1 passed 

• MAERB Annual Review Form Threshold Outcomes 

 
• Resource Assessment 

o An important tool used to ensure that any deficiencies in the program can be identified 
immediately and that a specific action plan can be developed and followed. 
 

Student Perspective 
• NTC Medical Assistant Program experience 
 

Employer Perspective 
• How has the program prepared students for employment? Do you have any areas or suggestions 

for improvement? 
o Finding those creative ways of training in the fields – especially when short staffed and 

not having extra bodies to help with training 
 
Program Modifications Discussion- Responsiveness to Change 

• Course changes 
• Practicum changes 
• Curriculum 

28/98



 
• Content 
• Sequencing 
• Required minimums reviewed & approved 
• Competencies 

 
Substantive Changes- Responsiveness to Change 

• Program Status 
o The Medical Assistant Technical Diploma is a 29 Credit Program.   
o In addition to our full-time option, we offer a 4-term part-time track. 

• WTCS MA Aligned Meetings 
o MA Enrollment is a challenge across the WTCS system 
o Professionalism is a challenge 
o Credentialing requirements and meeting employer demand was thoroughly discussed 
o Employer sponsorship opportunities  

• Sponsorship 
• Sponsor Administrator Personnel 
• Program Personnel 
• Change in Instruction Modality (Distance, Hybrid)  
• Additional campuses, instructional sites, practicum sites 

Facilities/Equipment 
• Remodeling update 

o New room built to simulate procedure/treatment room  
o Older rooms have been updated 

• Purchases 

MA Program Strengths and Areas of Improvement 
• Courses/attention towards bandages and dealing with blood and taking vitals 

 
Other Business 
 None 

 
Next Meeting Schedule & Agenda Items Discussion  
The date for the 2024 fall meeting has not yet been set. The group will be notified via email of this date once 
fall approaches. Meeting adjourned at 1:22 pm. 

29/98



2024 Spring Radiography Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Date: June 06, 2024  
Time: 1:30 pm-3:00 pm  
Location:  4011 & Zoom 

Zoom Meeting Link: https://ntc.zoom.us/j/85185477413 

Attendees 
Industry Members:  

• Dana Buttke- Clinical Instructor, Marshfield Clinic Marshfield/NTC Adjunct Instructor 
• Jenna Wehrman- Team Lead, Marshfield Clinic 
• Sharon Cwikla- Aspirus Medford Hospitals and Clinics 
• Kristen Simonis- Lead Rad Tech, Plover Hospital 
• Staci Zdroik- Radiology Team Lead, Aspirus Stevens Point    

 

NTC Team:  
• Leah Attoms – Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences & Community Services 
• Nicole Buse-Radiography Faculty 
• Jordyn Olson- Advisor, Student Success 
• Angela Roesler- Dean, Health Sciences and Community Services 
• Amber Schuck- Program Director, Radiography Faculty 
• Sandie Shorey- Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences and Academic Excellence 
• Amy Stephens- Faculty, Radiography 

Guest: 
• Kylee Manecke- Student 

 
Welcome Introductions  
 

Meeting called to order by Amber Schuck, at 1:32 pm. Amber welcomed everyone to the meeting and thanked them for 
attending. Everyone in attendance introduced themselves. 

Update and Highlights from Last Meeting 
Angela Roesler, Dean of Health Sciences and Community Services, called for any changes to the minutes from 
the fall meeting (11.30.23) There were no changes made to the minutes from the fall meeting. 
 
College-Wide Initiatives  
Power Point of College-Wide Initiatives was reviewed by Dean of Health Science and Community Services, 
Angela Roesler, including discussion of two new programs (Medical Administrative Professional AD and Sterile 
Processing Technician Certificate-a pipeline program to Surg Tech, as well as the newly developed Respiratory 
Therapy program).  

Additional items discussed include: NTC Accreditation (HLC Accreditation Update-NTC received full re-
accreditation), Dental Clinic Preventative Care Offerings/Program Highlights, an update on the Sawmill Wood 
Technology Center for Excellence expansion (partnership with UWSP), an update on the Forensic Science 
Center (ground breaking was supposed to be in May 2024, but is slightly delayed and is expected to take place 
soon with a construction process of up to 1 year), SIP/SOC codes and the Michigan Tech Mind Trekkers.   

30/98



Jordyn Olson, Advisor in Student Success, reviewed Student Support resources available, including Health 
Services via Telehealth. 
 
 

 

*Let Amber, Amy or Nicole know if 
you have a student in need. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Workforce Training and Professional Development Initiatives 

Angela spoke briefly, in the absence of WTPD staff, about the Workforce team offerings. WTPD has been 
focusing on offering Life Enrichment & Community Courses such as Art courses, dance courses, music courses 
and nature courses. Topics coming soon include: CPR/First Aid Certification, Creative Problem Solving: The 
Design Thinking Model, and Dance/Art/Beekeeping. If you are interested in finding a new hobby, or honing 
your skills, check these classes out! 
 
To access this information, please visit www.ntc.edu, select “Workforce Training & Professional Development” from the 
top of the page. Flyers will be included in the post meeting e-mail. 
 
Industry Trends 

• Staffing Needs/Changes 
o Positions open, actively hiring and do still have several travelers (majority overnights) 

• Equipment 
o Scanners out for approval, with xray rooms and mammography and out others in process 

• Job Availability 
o Imaging swat team 
o Keep tabs on students that come through as rad tech assistants (student engagement) 
o Rad Tech is the shining star compared to other specialties- up to 90% conversion 

• The Joint Commission (TJC) visit results 
o Recent surveys but nothing glaring from an imaging perspective 
o Joint Commission Tracers 

• Insurance billing or ACR certification changes 
o Fall (Sept) – MRI change (MRI safety manual) 

 2 MRI safety trained individuals moving from suggested to required 
 

Student Perspective 
Kylee Manecke, 2nd year student, spoke to the group. She reports that clinicals are going well. She is excited 
and sees the light at the end of the tunnel. 
 

31/98



Program Updates 
Radiography Program Director, Amber Schuck, as well as Radiography Faculty, Amy Stephens and Nicole Buse, 
shared the following Program Updates:     
 

• Enrollment Report 
o Enrollment – 30 first years for fall 2024 (up 4 from last fall) 

 22 2nd years, 24 graduates (total of 52 by end of next year) 
 Trialing Rocket book with a couple of students 
 Moved timekeeping spreadsheet so it is accessible on NTC share drive 
 HESI test; radiography requires score at least 70%  
 Discussion of HESI test non-bias (see slide) 

o Results- 58 testers, 35 over 70% (4 students “on deck”) 
o This process is currently being reviewed by TCS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

• Program Information 
o Visits to sites for Clinical Rotation (Aspirus Tomahawk, Wausau Bone and Joint, & 

Marshfield Stevens Point Clinic) 
o Club- symposium trip, remaining funds to ARRT scholarship 

 End of June students will learn how much these AART scholarships will be 
 Amber also sending the QR code again to Sharon, upon her request 

o Assessment committee highlights  - HESI data (see next slides) 
o Mock interview results – 24 mock interviews all scores over 80% 

 Clothing 
 Handshake 
 fidgeting 

o Remediation pilot study results- all students 2% higher GPA 
 Meet with 2nd yr tutor 
 Earn 3% back 
 All students who went had 2% higher GPA 
 Made them less timid to visit a tutor 
 Will continue it for the fall (calling it t-time) 

32/98



o Change to Summer Preceptor survey (site specific rather than Preceptor specific) TBA 
 Past survey was deployed through Canvas 
 We are doing a Formstack survey moving forward 

o AART Memberships 
 $35 membership-students were asked to purchase this and then they can use these 

benefits after graduation 
 5 Mock boards are included in this membership 

 

• Program recruitment/events 

Program Modifications Discussion- Responsiveness to Change 
• Share Program Modifications 

 
Facilities/Equipment 

• Update on equipment in our lab 
• Fluoro Room needs update in the next 5 years 

o Aspirus is looking to de-install theirs 
o Sharon has a vendor that she may be able to get some assistance for us from-likes partnering 

with technical colleges  

Other Business 
Jordyn mentioned the attentiveness of this particular cohort and how they are doing reach outs and asking 
great questions and trying to see what else they can do to succeed. 
 
Discussion topic: ARRT code of ethics review  

• Discussion from Amber took place on violations that should be reported to AART that could be 
consider ethics violations 

• Free 1 hr webinar that Amber encouraged others to take-Amber agreed to share the link 

 
Next Meeting Schedule & Agenda Items Discussion  
The date for the 2024 fall meeting has not yet been set. The group will be notified via email of this date once 
fall approaches. Meeting adjourned at 2:36 pm. 

33/98



2024 Spring Dental Therapy Advisory Committee 
Second Spring Meeting  

Minutes 
Date: June 21, 2024  

Time: 8:30 am-10:00 am  
Location:  4011 & Zoom 

Zoom Meeting Link: https://ntc.zoom.us/j/82312614647 

Attendees 
Industry Members:  

• Matt Crespin, RDH- Executive Director, Children’s Health Alliance of WI (via ZOOM) 
• Dr. Nathan Daily, DDS - Chief Dental Officer, Family Health La Clinica (via ZOOM) 
• Jordan Kolstad - Regional Director of Operations, Family Health La Clinica (via ZOOM) 
• Jenna Linden, RDH- Program Leader, Oral Health, Childrens Health Alliance WI (via ZOOM) 
• Tena Springer- Director of Dental Operations, Family Health, La Clinica (via ZOOM) 
• Dr. Thomas Treweek, DDS- Athens Dental Clinic 
• Karen Turner, RDH - Dental Practice Manager, Bridge Community Health Clinic  
• Dr. Thomas Wheeler, DMD- Director, Peter Christensen Dental Campus 

NTC Team:  
• Laura Ahonen- Associate Dean, Allied Health & Human Services 
• Dr. William Akey, DDS - Supervising Dentist, NTC 
• Brenda Alberts, RDH- Dental Faculty 
• Leah Attoms - Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences & Community Services (via ZOOM) 
• Deb Koziel, RDH - Program Director & Dental Faculty 

• Maria Pernsteiner - Learning Coordinator, Health Sciences & Community Services 

• Sandie Shorey – Administrative Assistant, Health Sciences & Academic Excellence 

• Dr. Richard Wilkosz - Science Faculty 
 

Welcome Introductions  
 

Meeting called to order by Associate Dean of Allied Health and Community Services, Laura Ahonen, at 
08:32am. Laura welcomed everyone to the meeting and thanked them for attending. The meeting began with 
introductions.  

Review of the Proposed NTC Curriculum (3 year by CODA standards) 
 

Dr. Akey reviewed the Proposed Dental Therapy 3-year NTC Curriculum: 
o CODA requires that Dental Therapy curriculum “be at least three academic years of full-time 

instruction or its equivalent at the postsecondary college-level.” 
 

o WTCS has approved 86 total credits 
 20 General Education credits (same gen-eds as Dental Hygiene) 
 66 Dental Therapy program credits 

    
 

 
 

34/98



 
Proposed Dental Therapy 3-year Curriculum 

 
Points of Discussion regarding the Proposed Curriculum- Dr Akey 
*1st semester curriculum allows for leveling of student skills and get them all on the same page, which is very 
advantageous to these students. As they progress in the program, they will have exposure to the 2nd and 3rd year 
students which will help with their educational experiences.  
*2nd semester students start doing more complex restorations and it continually progresses from there.  
*Dental Therapy Programs are 3-year programs (CODA requirement). It is currently a requirement that students are 
licensed RDH coming into the program. We will continually reassess the admissions process, as well as the student 
success rates. But we do need to make sure that we are meeting CODA requirements. 
*The Dental Therapy Degree will be an Associate Degree. UW Stevens Point will create transfer opportunities in their 
Health Science and Wellness BS program; they are also investigating the possibility of using Dental Therapy coursework 
to count towards their MBA program as this program develops. We are in the beginning stages of looking at articulation 
agreements with Marquette University, etc.  
* Language was added, as a last-minute provision, regarding the timeline of the 4-year rider for full accreditation- 12 to 
18 months after we submit the application before we can begin a cohort. For this reason, there is no guarantee that we 
can begin a fall 2025 start.  However, we are optimistic and working diligently to achieve that target start date.  
*Licensing Exam- they will need to take a boards exam, a practical exam, and a jurisprudence exam upon completion; 
there are a few practical options available and were looking into them.  
*These 12 students will be a tight group of 12 who will be the only 12 students in the state who will be going through 
this program. They will need to lean on each other and learn to rely on each other for support and encouragement since 
nobody else will be experiencing a program like this in the state of Wisconsin. 
*There are no virtual components in the program; all lectures, labs, and clinicals are face-to-face only 
*Matt Crespin recommended that NTC secure a spot on the agenda for the Wisconsin Dental Examining Board meeting. 
He emphasized the importance of advocating for the recognition of our program's depth and rigor, which are 
comparable to those of advanced degree programs. It is crucial to convey that our associate degree program is designed 
to meet and exceed the professional competencies required of dental therapists. 
 
The proposed Competencies by Semester were discussed; they can be accessed via this link and also will be attached to 
the meeting minutes. 
https://ntc0-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/ahonen_ntc_edu/EWy3sraSw6xOt8zFG2hzynQBpgl5aTrm2b6fnu2n9hBK0g 

35/98



 
 
 

Curricular Themes of Each Semester 

 
Clinical Sites for Dental Therapy Students 

• Discussion of Potential Clinical Sites 
o Community Health Centers: Provide exposure to underserved populations and diverse dental needs. 

 1 ½-2-day per week for advanced clinical courses (with rotating groups, so it is possible that 
there could be multiple days per week since there would be more than one group) 
It was mentioned that it would be a good idea that the students should be oriented to the 
site prior to the start of the rotation; this would increase student familiarity of the site and 
increase treatment opportunities.   

 The community clinical sites maybe somewhat limited to geographical location since the 
program is face-to-face at NTC in Wausau 

o Private Dental Practices: Offer real-world experience in a professional dental setting. 
o Hospital Dental Departments: Enable students to gain experience in managing medically complex patients. 
o School-Based Dental Programs: Allow students to participate in preventive and educational dental services 

for children. There is such a great need for these sites.  
o Specialty Clinics: Include opportunities in pediatric dentistry, oral surgery, and orthodontics to broaden 

student experience. 
o Other- Mission Trip- Provides a great experience and opportunity for the students to submerge themselves 

and get repetitive skill practice. The down side is that it does not count towards their competencies.  
• There was discussion on removing the required work experience from the list of pre-requisites. None 

of the Advisory Committee members opposed removing this element. 
 

o Three CODA accredited Dental Therapy programs in the US and prerequisite: 
 Alaska- Ilisagvik College Alaska Dental Therapy Education Program (ADTEP) 

  HS diploma 
 Minnesota- University of Minnesota School of Dentistry 

 Dual degree: BSDH/MDT Dual Degree 
 Washington- Skagit Valley College 

36/98



 HS diploma or higher 
 50-200 hours of dental related experience 

• Proposal for Admission Requirements 
 
As a pre-requisite to program enrollment, an applicant must: 

o be a graduate of an accredited Dental Hygiene program through the Commission on Dental 
Accreditation (CODA) 

o be licensed as a Dental Hygienist by the Wisconsin State Board of Dental Examiners 
o hold certification in Local Anesthesia and Nitrous Oxide administration as granted by the State 

of Wisconsin DSPS 
o hold valid CPR/AED certification 
 
There was discussion on removing the requirement of having two years of Dental Hygiene 
experience prior to entering the program. Dental Therapy students are required to be dental 
hygienists and have gone through the licensing process so they have experienced a great deal of 
requirement already. There was agreement that the gap in between would be very hard to retain 
people and would likely lose students who may otherwise have an interest in this program. 

*Student satisfaction- Dr Akey mentioned that they plan to have quarterly meetings to gauge this 
and be sure that the students are feeling satisfied due to the rigor and that they are focused on the 
outcome of the Dental Therapy degree, not Associates, versus Bachelors. We will have an interview 
with the student as a part of the admissions process. It was discussed that the perception of the 
Associates degree versus Bachelors will be a matter of educating the dental community (of the 
rigor of the curriculum) -It was suggested by Matt Crespin that NTC makes an agenda request with 
the Dental Examining Board (DEB) –this would dispel any concerns from the dental board. We can 
help them to understand the rigor and all that is going into the intentionality of this program. 

*Articulation Agreements- Marion University and Carrol University were two others that were 
mentioned that could be looked into as well. 

• Advocacy For Dental Therapy 
https://youtu.be/BZo7pwcTy2Y?si=gzJ5d5o0hIXvJPRO 
A two-minute video to help with advocacy was presented 

 
Next Meeting Schedule & Agenda Items Discussion  
The proposed date for the 2024 fall meeting was Friday, October 11, 2024 from 12:30pm-2:00pm. All agreed. 
The group will be notified via email of this date, and invitation, once fall approaches. Meeting adjourned at 
09:54am. 

37/98



 Board of Trustees Upcoming Meetings + Events – 2024-2025  Updated: 7/24/24 

 
Date 

 
Event 

 

Tr
o

y 

B
ro

w
n

  

Sh
e

rr
y 

B
u

n
te

n
 

V
A

C
A

N
T 

To
m

 
Fe

lc
h

 

R
e

n
ae

 

K
ri

n
gs

 

N
at

h
an

 
Le

h
m

an
 

C
h

ar
lie

 
P

au
ls

o
n

 

P
au

l 
P

ro
u

lx
 

H
ea

th
e

r 
R

e
n

ze
lm

an
n

 

2024  

MONDAY July 8 Annual Organizational Meeting  X E  X X X X X X 

July 23 RFSC Groundbreaking Ceremony X    X X X X X 

August 13 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting          

September 10 WTCS State Board Meeting (NTC)          

September 10 WTCS State Board Awards + Dinner (Holiday Inn)          

September 11 WTCS State Board Meeting (NTC)          

September 17 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting  
(9:00 a.m. start time) 

         

October 15 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting          

November 5 Board Retreat           

November 20-22 WTC DBA Fall Meeting  
(Fox Valley Technical College, Appleton) 

         

December 3 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting  
(Lunch at 12:00 p.m. w/Foundation Board) 

         

December 14 Graduation (10:00 a.m. @ The Grand Theater)          

2025  

January 14 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting           

January 15-16 WTC DBA Legislative Seminar | Capitol Day (Madison)          

January 17 ACCT Governance Leadership Institute (GLI) (Madison) 
 

         

February 11 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting           

March 4 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting           

April 8 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting  
(Tentative: Antigo Campus) 

         

April 10 WTCS Ambassador Banquet (Wisconsin Dells)          

38/98



April 11 DBA Trustees + Ambassadors Breakfast (Wisconsin 
Dells) 

         

May 6 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting           

May 17 Graduation (10:00 a.m. @ Wausau West Fieldhouse)          

June 3 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting  
(Public Budget Hearing at 12:15 p.m. | Lunch at approx. 
12:30 p.m. | Regular Meeting at 1:00 p.m.)  

         

All Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meetings begin at 1:00 p.m. and are held on the Wausau Campus located at 1000 W. Campus Drive, Wausau, WI 54401 in Timberwolf 
Conference Center/Room D100 unless otherwise noted. 

 
 

39/98



 

15
19
36
_2

��������	
�����������
�������������	�����
������������������ �!��������������	

����
�������������������	
��������������	������������	�

�������	
�	�������	�����
	���������������������
�������������������������������������������
��
��������
���������������	
������������	
����������

����������������������������������
���� !���������������"�
�

�
����!������������������������������������
���� !���������������"�
�

�
����!��
�


������#���$���������%!%!��&��'�������(��%
 )%* ��)��


������#���$���������%!%!��&��'�������(��%
 )%* ��)�

+���������(,���-��,�#�����(�(�����.����,�/�������/���0#������1,���(�������
��(������������1,������������������/����2�//����,�

2�������#������3����4��(�����5�%�*�6�,/�����7���������������!����
����	�� ���!�����	�	���	
����	�

����������	�����"����	�����������

#�	�
����$%���&������'�����
��	�
��������������
����(�������)��!����!	����'���"�

�������	
�������
������������������
	�������
�����
�����������	
�����
����������  
�������������!���

"	�
#�����$������$�%%�
����$��%���&��!����
�'����
(�!����	���!����	
������"�����(�	������������

'�����*����+������������*	,�
	����������������

-��	�*����
	���������
����!
���!���
���.�+�������

���	�����"�

����������
	
����
 ���-�*�� �����	
/����'����/�
�

������-�*���)��-�
	�

15
46
57

-

e 
e, 

e 
t.
e 

y 

-
y, 
/

W-
e 
e 
n 
r 

o 
t 
e 
c 

NTC receives Youth Firefi ghter Training Grant
Northcentral Technical College (NTC) 

was one of four recent recipients of a 
$25,000 Youth Firefi ghter Training Grant 
from the Wisconsin Department of Safety 
and Professional Services (DSPS).

 “We recognize the growing demand for 
qualifi ed volunteer fi refi ghters within our 
community,” said Dr. Jeannie Worden, NTC 
president. “In order to address this urgent 
need, it is crucial to attract people into the 
emergency services when they are young 
so that they can form a lifelong connection, 
whether as a fi rst responder or as a com-
munity supporter.”

 The grant will help fund a new program, 
NTC’s Youth Firefi ghter Academy, which 
will train high school students to be Fire-
fi ghter Level 1 volunteers/employees and 
prepare them for the emergency medical 
responder certifi cation exam. Grant part-
ners include the volunteer Central Fire and 
EMS District and Colby and Abbotsford 
high schools.

 “It’s all about public safety,” said Dan 
Hereth, DSPS secretary. “Our Wisconsin 

fi re departments do more than fi ght fi res. 
They are on the front lines of all aspects of 
community safety.”

 Recruitment and retention have become 
key issues for many Wisconsin fi re depart-
ments, particularly the all-volunteer station. 
The Youth Firefi ghter Grant Program is 
designed to help address these concerns 
by exposing high school students to career 
and volunteer opportunities in the fire 
service at a time when they 
are making decisions about 
their future careers and 
endeavors.

 Steve Wozniak, princi-
pal at Colby High School, 
also serves as a volunteer 
firefighter at Central Fire 
and EMS. He went through 
his firefighter training at 
NTC and was instrumental 
in getting the ball rolling on 
this collaboration.

“At 36, I’m one of the 
younger members of the 

department and that’s kind of scary,” said 
Wozniak. ”We need to do what we can to fi ll 
that gap and recruit younger fi refi ghters.”

 Next year, NTC will train up to six high 
school students to be Firefi ghter Level 1 
volunteers or employees.

 “By working together, we are building 
pathways ensuring a viable, and sustain-
able, public safety workforce for central 
Wisconsin,” said Worden.

Jul
03 2024 Page

0003
Clip

resized
81%

Loyal, Tribune Record Gleaner

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.40/98



Jul
03 2024 Page

T010
Clip

resized
63%

Abbotsford, Tribune-Phonograph

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.41/98



NTC receives 
youth firefighter 

training grant
Northcentral Technical 

College (NTC) was one of 
four recent recipients of a 
$25,000 youth firefighter 
training grant from the Wis-
consin Department of Safety 
and Professional Services 
(DSPS).

“We recognize the grow-
ing demand for qualified 
volunteer  re  ghters within 
our community,” said NTC 
president Dr. Jeannie Worden. 
“In order to address this urgent 
need, it is crucial to attract 
people into the emergency 
services when they are young 
so that they can form a lifelong 
connection, whether as a  rst 
responder or as a community 
supporter.”

The grant will help fund a 
new program, NTC’s Youth 
Fire  ghter Academy, which 
will train high school stu-
dents to be Fire  ghter Level 
1 volunteers/employees and 
prepare them for the emer-
gency medical responder 
certification exam. Grant 
partners include the volunteer 
Central Fire and EMS District 
and Colby and Abbotsford 
high schools.

“It’s all about public safe-
ty,” said DSPS secretary Dan 
Hereth. “Our Wisconsin  re 
departments do more than 
 ght  res. They are on the 

frontlines of all aspects of 
community safety.”

Recruitment and retention 
have become key issues for 
many Wisconsin  re depart-
ments, particularly the all-
volunteer station. The Youth 
Firefighter Grant Program 
is designed to help address 
these concerns by exposing 
high school students to career 
and volunteer opportunities in 
the  re service at a time when 
they are making decisions 
about their future careers and 
endeavors.

Steve Wozniak, principal 
at Colby High School, also 
serves as a volunteer  re-
 ghter at Central Fire and 

EMS. He went through his 
 re  ghter training at NTC 

and was instrumental in get-
ting the ball rolling on this 

collaboration.
“At 36, I’m one of the 

younger members of the 
department and that’s kind 
of scary,” said Wozniak. “We 
need to do what we can to  ll 
that gap and recruit younger 
 re  ghters.”

Next year, NTC will train 
up to six high school students 
to be Fire  ghter Level 1 vol-
unteers or employees.

“By working together, we 
are building pathways ensur-
ing a viable, and sustainable, 
public safety workforce for 
central Wisconsin,” Worden 
said.

Neillsville, Clark County Press

Jul
10

2024

Page
018
Clip

resized
72%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.42/98



g y y p p g

 

 Mosinee Police Officer Completes Crisis Intervention Training

 Mosinee Police Officer Luke Blawat pictured above center with fellow 
 officers from the area and pictured right with Mosinee Police Chief 
 Kenneth Grams recently attended and completed a 40 hour training course 
 at North Central Technical College regarding Crisis Intervention Training. 
 This training will provide the officers the skills necessary to deal with 
 citizens undergoing mental stress issues.  Police Chief Kenneth R. Grams 
 was honored to be able to attend the graduation ceremony to celebrate the 
 officer's accomplishments. 

Jul
18 2024 Page

001
Clip

resized
60%

Mosinee Times

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.43/98



 WAUSAU — A black-
and-white photograph 
on an office wall at the 

Greater Wausau Chamber of 
Commerce depicts civic leaders 
behind the economic change 
shaking that Wisconsin River 
city more than a century ago. It 

also speaks to the 
future — not only 
for Wausau, but 
similar commu-
nities in the state.

Nine members 
of “The Wausau 
Group,” mainly 
lumbermen and 
other business 
executives, came 

together as the lumber trade 
was fading to envision how 
to keep the city and region 
thriving. The core answer was 
attracting more diverse man-
ufacturing and emerging busi-
nesses, such as insurance and 
even specialty crops such as 
ginseng. Some of their names 
remain tied to Wausau institu-
tions today: D.C. Everest and 
Cyrus Yawkey are examples.

Economic dynamism means 
nothing stays the same for-
ever, so Wausau and Marathon 
County — like other regions in 
Wisconsin — are contemplating 
new ways and undergoing vis-
ible change in some cases. The 
board of directors for the Wis-
consin Technology Council had 
a chance to witness such trans-
formation in a recent working 
visit to the city.

It won’t happen elsewhere 
without a sense of purpose, 
however.

“What is happening right 
now in rural Wisconsin scares 
me,” said Dave Eckmann, who 
leads the Wausau chamber, 
which extends into Marathon 
County. He cited demographic 
trends, health care access, sup-
port for education and child 
care options for working fami-
lies as leading examples.

Rather than wring his hands, 
however, Eckmann and oth-
ers have pursued a “grow our 

Smaller 
towns not 
content to 
just sit by

INSIDE WISCONSIN 
| RURAL 
REVITALIZATION

TOM  
STILL

Please see STILL, Page A18

Madison, Wisconsin State Journal

Jul
21

2024

Page
A014

Clip
resized

44%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.44/98



own” plan that seeks to 
build on existing civic 
and natural strengths. A 
nationally known kayak 
course traverses parts of 
downtown Wausau; Wis-
consin’s second-highest 
peak looms on the hori-
zon; and new businesses, 
mostly small, are cropping 
up in revitalized areas.

The city is also gaining a 
reputation for being an un-
der-the-radar startup hub. 
Marketbeat.com recently 
ranked 100 “hidden gem 
cities” for startups and 
Wausau was 63rd on the 
list, citing new companies 
in health care and man-
ufacturing, as well as the 
local support system and 
cost of living. Oshkosh and 
Stevens Point were 73rd 
and 74th, respectively, on 
the same list.

Access to capital is the 
lifeblood for young com-
panies. The Tech Council 
board meeting featured 
leaders from all five recipi-
ent funds that make up the 
2-month-old “Wisconsin 
Innovation Fund.” That is 
a public and private fund-
of-funds set up through 
the Wisconsin Economic 

Development Corp. Those 
five funds have collectively 
made a half-dozen invest-
ments thus far under a 
directive to look for deals in 
underserved areas.

With Competitive Wis-
consin Inc. as a partner, the 
chamber has launched a 
“Rural Resurgence” project 
to examine some of the 
“scary” trends and sta-
tistics cited by Eckmann, 
with an eye toward offering 
solutions — much like “The 
Wausau Group” at the turn 
of the 20th century.

Attracting and retaining 
workforce is among them, 
which is why focusing on 
“placemaking” is among 
the strategies. People 
won’t come or stay without 
good reasons. Health care 
assets and schools, both 
K-12 and higher education, 
are also part of the answer. 
In Wausau’s case, it has 
both a two-year campus 
tied to UW-Stevens Point 
and Northcentral Techni-
cal College, which offers 
degrees, certificates and 
other training in most of 
the businesses and in-
dustries indigenous to the 
region.

The toughest nut to 
crack may be health care, 
which has huge challenges 
nationally but especially 

in rural America. UW-
Eau Claire Chancellor 
Jim Schmidt was on hand 
in Wausau to outline the 
“Rural Health Innovation 
Alliance” project, which 
was launched in the Chip-
pewa Valley with the goal 
of spreading ideas and best 
practices nationwide if not 
beyond.

Calling it a “sandbox” 
for ideas and experiments, 
Schmidt said the growing 
alliance will focus on effi-
ciencies, access and tech-
nologies that can change 
health care delivery today. 
“The economics of health 
care are failing everyone,” 
said Schmidt, who noted 
rural areas are ripe for 
health delivery options.

As I noted in a May col-
umn, Wisconsin is a state 
with two economies — one 
largely urban and more 
prosperous, the other 
predominantly rural and 
challenged. It need not be 
that way. As was true more 
than a century ago, don’t 
underestimate the ability 
of small groups of people to 
make things better.

Tom Still is the president of 
the Wisconsin Technology 
Council. Email: tstill@
wisconsintechnologycouncil.
com.

Still
From A14

Madison, Wisconsin State Journal

Jul
21

2024

Page
A018

Clip
resized

65%

From
A014

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.45/98



Youth Firefighting Training grant presented to NTC
Northcentral Technical 

College (NTC) was one of 
four recipients of a $25,000 

grant from the Wiscon-
sin Department of Safety 
and Professional Services 
(DSPS).

“We recognize the 
growing demand for quali-

within our community,” 
said Jeannie Worden, NTC 
president. “To address this 
urgent need, it is crucial 
to attract people into the 
emergency services when 
they are young so that they 
can form a lifelong con-

responder or as a commu-
nity supporter.”

The grant will help fund 
a new program, NTC’s 

-
emy, which will train high 

school students to be Fire-

or employees and prepare 
them for the emergency 

-
cation exam.

“It’s all about public 

departments do more than 

frontlines of all aspects 
of community safety,” 
said DSPS Secretary Dan 
Hereth before presenting 
the check. “We’re proud to 
present these funds, and to 
further Gov. Tony Evers’ 

communities and other 
partners to help keep Wis-
consinites safe.”

Recruitment and reten-
tion have become key 
issues for many Wisconsin 

-
larly the all-volunteer sta-

Grant Program is designed 
to help address these 
concerns by exposing high 
school students to career 
and volunteer opportu-

at a time when they are 
making decisions about 
their future careers and 
endeavors.

Next year, NTC will 
train up to six high school 

employees.
NTC has six campus lo-

Medford, Phillips, Spencer 
and Wittenberg.

Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services Secretary Dan Hereth presents a Youth Firefighting 
Training grant check to Jeannie Worden, president of Northcentral Technical College. The grant will help fund a new 
program, NTC’s Youth Firefighter Academy, which will train high school students to be Firefighter Level 1 volunteers 
or employees and prepare them for the emergency medical responder certification exam. CONTRIBUTED

Jul
12 2024 Page

A05
Clip

resized
61%

Wittenberg Enterprise and Birnamwood News

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.46/98



Inside Wisconsin
by Tom Still

“Building Wisconsin’s rural, small city economies need mix of solutions”
WAUSAU, Wis. – A black-

and-white photograph on an 

Wausau Chamber of Com-
merce depicts civic lead-
ers behind the economic 
change shaking that Wis-
consin River city more than 
a century ago. It also speaks 
to the future – not only for 
Wausau, but similar com-
munities in the state.
 Nine members of “The 

lumbermen and other busi-
ness executives, came to-
gether as the lumber trade 
was fading to envision how 
to keep the city and region 
thriving. The core answer 
was attracting more diverse 
manufacturing and emerg-
ing businesses, such as in-
surance and even specialty 
crops such as ginseng. 
Some of their names remain 
tied to Wausau institutions 
today: D.C. Everest and 
Cyrus Yawkey are exam-
ples.
 Economic dynamism 

means nothing stays the 
same forever, so Wausau 
and Marathon County – like 
other regions in Wisconsin 
– are contemplating new 
ways and undergoing vis-
ible change in some cases. 
The board of directors for 
the Wisconsin Technology 
Council had a chance to 
witness such transformation 
in a recent working visit to 
the city.
 It won’t happen elsewhere 

without a sense of purpose, 
however. 

“What is happening right 
now in rural Wisconsin 
scares me,” said Dave 
Eckmann, who leads the 
Wausau chamber, which ex-
tends into Marathon Coun-
ty. He cited demographic 
trends, healthcare access, 
support for education and 
child-care options for work-
ing families as leading ex-
amples. 

Rather than wring his 
hands, however, Eckmann 
and others have pursued a 
“grow our own” plan that 
seeks to build on existing 
civic and natural strengths. 
A nationally known kayak 
course traverses parts of 
downtown Wausau; Wis-
consin’s second-highest 
peak looms on the horizon; 
and new businesses, mostly 
small, are cropping up in re-
vitalized areas.

The city is also gain-
ing a reputation for being 
an under-the-radar startup 
hub. Marketbeat.com re-
cently ranked 100 “hidden 
gem cities” for startups and 
Wausau was 63rd on the 
list, citing new companies 
in healthcare and manufac-
turing, as well as the local 
support system and cost of 
living. Oshkosh and Ste-
vens Point were 73rd and 
74th, respectively, on the 
same list.

Access To capital is the 
lifeblood for young com-

panies. The Tech Council 
board meeting featured 

-
ent funds that make up the 
two-month-old “Wisconsin 
Innovation Fund.” That is 
a public and private fund-
of-funds set up through the 
Wisconsin Economic De-
velopment Corp. Those 
five funds have collec-
tively made a half-dozen 
investments thus far un-
der a directive to look 
for deals in underserved 
areas.

With Competitive Wis-
consin Inc. as a partner, 
the chamber has launched 
a “Rural Resurgence” 
project to examine some 
of the “scary” trends and 
statistics cited by Eck-
mann, with an eye toward 
offering solutions – much 

at the turn of the 20th 
century.

 Attracting and retain-
ing workforce is among 
them, which is why fo-
cusing on “placemaking” 
is among the strategies. 
People won’t come or 
stay without good rea-
sons. Healthcare assets 
and schools, both K-12 
and higher education, are 
also part of the answer. 
In Wausau’s case, it has 
both a two-year campus 
tied to UW-Stevens Point 
and Northcentral Techni-
cal College, which offers 
degrees, certificates and 

other training in most of 
the businesses and indus-
tries indigenous to the 
region.
The toughest nut to crack 

may be healthcare, which 
has huge challenges na-
tionally but especially 
in rural America. UW-
Eau Claire Chancellor 
Jim Schmidt was on hand in 
Wausau to outline the “Rural 
Health Innovation Alliance” 
project, which was launched 
in the Chippewa Valley with 
the goal of spreading ideas 
and best practices nationwide 
if not beyond.
Calling it a “sandbox” 

for ideas and experiments, 
Schmidt said the growing 
alliance will focus on ef-

-
nologies that can change 
healthcare delivery today. 
“The economics of healthcare 
are failing everyone,” said 
Schmidt, who noted rural areas 
are ripe for health delivery op-
tions.
As I noted in a May column, 

Wisconsin is a state with two 
economies – one largely urban 
and more prosperous, the other 
predominantly rural and chal-
lenged. It need not be that way. 
As was true more than a centu-
ry ago, don’t underestimate the 
ability of small groups of peo-
ple to make things better.
Still is president of the 

Wisconsin Technology 
Council. He can be reached 
at tstill@wisconsintechnol-
ogycouncil.com.

rt 

d 
er 
s. 
n 

re 
re 
e 

s. 
cs 

e 
e 

e-
d 
o 

ul 
ur 
p-
ul 
ts 
r, 

e 
n 
i-
st 
a 
n 
d 

t-
er 

Cumberland Advocate

Jul
24

2024

Page
A004

Clip
resized

54%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.47/98



TOM STILL
Wisconsin Technology Council

WAUSAU, Wis. — A black-
and-white photograph on an 
office wall at the Greater Wausau 
Chamber of Commerce depicts 
civic leaders behind the eco-
nomic change shaking that Wis-
consin River city more than a 
century ago. It also speaks to the 
future — not only for Wausau, 
but similar communities in the 
state.

Nine members of “The 
Wausau Group,” mainly lumber-
men and other business execu-
tives, came together as the lum-
ber trade was fading to envision 
how to keep the city and region 
thriving. The core answer was 
attracting more diverse manufac-
turing and emerging businesses, 
such as insurance and even spe-
cialty crops such as ginseng. 
Some of their names remain tied 
to Wausau institutions today: 
D.C. Everest and Cyrus Yawkey 
are examples.

Economic dynamism means 
nothing stays the same for-
ever, so Wausau and Marathon 
County — like other regions 
in Wisconsin — are contem-
plating new ways and undergo-
ing visible change in some cases. 
The board of directors for the 
Wisconsin Technology Coun-
cil had a chance to witness such 

transformation in a recent work-
ing visit to the city.

It won’t happen elsewhere 
without a sense of purpose, how-
ever.

“What is happening right now 
in rural Wisconsin scares me,” 
said Dave Eckmann, who leads 
the Wausau chamber, which 
extends into Marathon County. 
He cited demographic trends, 
healthcare access, support for 
education and child-care options 
for working families as leading 
examples.

Rather than wring his hands, 
however, Eckmann and others 
have pursued a “grow our own” 
plan that seeks to build on exist-
ing civic and natural strengths. 
A nationally known kayak 
course traverses parts of down-
town Wausau; Wisconsin’s sec-
ond-highest peak looms on the 
horizon; and new businesses, 
mostly small, are cropping up in 
revitalized areas.

The city is also gaining a rep-
utation for being an under-the-
radar startup hub. Marketbeat.
com recently ranked 100 “hid-
den gem cities” for startups and 
Wausau was 63rd on the list, cit-
ing new companies in health-
care and manufacturing, as well 
as the local support system and 
cost of living. Oshkosh and Ste-
vens Point were 73rd and 74th, 

respectively, on the same list.
Access to capital is the lifeblood 

for young companies. The Tech 
Council board meeting featured 
leaders from all five recipient 
funds that make up the 2-month-
old “Wisconsin Innovation 
Fund.” That is a public and private 
fund-of-funds set up through 
the Wisconsin Economic Devel-
opment Corp. Those five funds 
have collectively made a half-
dozen investments thus far under 
a directive to look for deals in 
underserved areas.

With Competitive Wisconsin 
Inc. as a partner, the chamber has 
launched a “Rural Resurgence” 
project to examine some of the 
“scary” trends and statistics cited 
by Eckmann, with an eye toward 
offering solutions — much like 
“The Wausau Group” at the turn 
of the 20th century.

Attracting and retaining work-
force is among them, which is 
why focusing on “placemaking” 
is among the strategies. People 
won’t come or stay without good 
reasons. Healthcare assets and 
schools, both K-12 and higher 
education, are also part of the 
answer. In Wausau’s case, it has 
both a two-year campus tied to 
UW-Stevens Point and North-
central Technical College, which 
offers degrees, certificates and 
other training in most of the 

businesses and industries indige-
nous to the region.

The toughest nut to crack may 
be healthcare, which has huge 
challenges nationally but espe-
cially in rural America. UW-Eau 
Claire Chancellor Jim Schmidt 
was on hand in Wausau to out-
line the “Rural Health Innova-
tion Alliance” project, which was 
launched in the Chippewa Valley 
with the goal of spreading ideas 
and best practices nationwide if 
not beyond.

Calling it a “sandbox” for ideas 
and experiments, Schmidt said 
the growing alliance will focus on 
efficiencies, access and technol-
ogies that can change healthcare 
delivery today.

“The economics of health-
care are failing everyone,” said 
Schmidt, who noted rural areas 
are ripe for health delivery 
options.

As I noted in a May column, 
Wisconsin is a state with two 
economies — one largely urban 
and more prosperous, the other 
predominantly rural and chal-
lenged. It need not be that way. As
was true more than a century ago,
don’t underestimate the ability of 
small groups of people to make 
things better.

Still is president of the Wisconsin Technol-
ogy Council. He can be reached at news@
wisconsintechnologycouncil.com.

INSIDE WISCONSIN

Building Wisconsin’s rural, small city
economies will need mix of solutions

Deerfield, The Independent

Jul
25

2024

Page
A004

Clip
resized

68%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.48/98



TOM STILL
Wisconsin Technology Council

WAUSAU, Wis. — A black-
and-white photograph on an 
office wall at the Greater Wausau 
Chamber of Commerce depicts 
civic leaders behind the eco-
nomic change shaking that Wis-
consin River city more than a 
century ago. It also speaks to the 
future — not only for Wausau, 
but similar communities in the 
state.

Nine members of “The 
Wausau Group,” mainly lumber-
men and other business execu-
tives, came together as the lum-
ber trade was fading to envision 
how to keep the city and region 
thriving. The core answer was 
attracting more diverse manu-
facturing and emerging busi-
nesses, such as insurance and 
even specialty crops such as 
ginseng. Some of their names 
remain tied to Wausau institu-
tions today: D.C. Everest and 
Cyrus Yawkey are examples.

Economic dynamism means 
nothing stays the same for-
ever, so Wausau and Marathon 
County — like other regions in 
Wisconsin — are contemplat-
ing new ways and undergoing 
visible change in some cases. 
The board of directors for the 
Wisconsin Technology Coun-
cil had a chance to witness such 

transformation in a recent work-
ing visit to the city.

It won’t happen elsewhere 
without a sense of purpose, how-
ever.

“What is happening right 
now in rural Wisconsin scares 
me,” said Dave Eckmann, who 
leads the Wausau chamber, 
which extends into Marathon 
County. He cited demographic 
trends, healthcare access, sup-
port for education and child-
care options for working families 
as leading examples.

Rather than wring his hands, 
however, Eckmann and others 
have pursued a “grow our own” 
plan that seeks to build on exist-
ing civic and natural strengths. 
A nationally known kayak 
course traverses parts of down-
town Wausau; Wisconsin’s sec-
ond-highest peak looms on the 
horizon; and new businesses, 
mostly small, are cropping up in 
revitalized areas.

The city is also gaining a rep-
utation for being an under-the-
radar startup hub. Marketbeat.
com recently ranked 100 “hid-
den gem cities” for startups and 
Wausau was 63rd on the list, cit-
ing new companies in health-
care and manufacturing, as well 
as the local support system and 
cost of living. Oshkosh and Ste-
vens Point were 73rd and 74th, 
respectively, on the same list.

Access to capital is the life-
blood for young companies. 
The Tech Council board meet-
ing featured leaders from all five 
recipient funds that make up the 
2-month-old “Wisconsin Inno-
vation Fund.” That is a pub-
lic and private fund-of-funds 
set up through the Wisconsin 
Economic Development Corp. 
Those five funds have collec-
tively made a half-dozen invest-
ments thus far under a directive 
to look for deals in underserved 
areas.

With Competitive Wiscon-
sin Inc. as a partner, the cham-
ber has launched a “Rural Resur-
gence” project to examine some 
of the “scary” trends and statis-
tics cited by Eckmann, with an 
eye toward offering solutions — 
much like “The Wausau Group” 
at the turn of the 20th century.

Attracting and retaining 
workforce is among them, which 
is why focusing on “placemak-
ing” is among the strategies. Peo-
ple won’t come or stay with-
out good reasons. Healthcare 
assets and schools, both K-12 
and higher education, are also 
part of the answer. In Wausau’s 
case, it has both a two-year cam-
pus tied to UW-Stevens Point 
and Northcentral Technical Col-
lege, which offers degrees, certif-
icates and other training in most 
of the businesses and industries 

indigenous to the region.
The toughest nut to crack may 

be healthcare, which has huge 
challenges nationally but espe-
cially in rural America. UW-Eau 
Claire Chancellor Jim Schmidt 
was on hand in Wausau to out-
line the “Rural Health Innova-
tion Alliance” project, which was
launched in the Chippewa Val-
ley with the goal of spreading 
ideas and best practices nation-
wide if not beyond.

Calling it a “sandbox” for ideas
and experiments, Schmidt said 
the growing alliance will focus 
on efficiencies, access and tech-
nologies that can change health-
care delivery today.

“The economics of health-
care are failing everyone,” said 
Schmidt, who noted rural areas 
are ripe for health delivery 
options.

As I noted in a May column, 
Wisconsin is a state with two 
economies — one largely urban 
and more prosperous, the other 
predominantly rural and chal-
lenged. It need not be that way. 
As was true more than a century 
ago, don’t underestimate the 
ability of small groups of people 
to make things better.

Still is president of the Wisconsin Technol-
ogy Council. He can be reached at news@
wisconsintechnologycouncil.com.

INSIDE WISCONSIN

Building Wisconsin’s rural, small city 
economies will need mix of solutions

Lake Mills Leader

Jul
25

2024

Page
A04
Clip

resized
73%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.49/98



TOM STILL
Wisconsin Technology Council

WAUSAU, Wis. — A black-
and-white photograph on an 
office wall at the Greater Wausau 
Chamber of Commerce depicts 
civic leaders behind the eco-
nomic change shaking that Wis-
consin River city more than a 
century ago. It also speaks to the 
future — not only for Wausau, 
but similar communities in the 
state.

Nine members of “The 
Wausau Group,” mainly lumber-
men and other business execu-
tives, came together as the lum-
ber trade was fading to envision 
how to keep the city and region 
thriving. The core answer was 
attracting more diverse manufac-
turing and emerging businesses, 
such as insurance and even spe-
cialty crops such as ginseng. 
Some of their names remain tied 
to Wausau institutions today: 
D.C. Everest and Cyrus Yawkey 
are examples.

Economic dynamism means 
nothing stays the same for-
ever, so Wausau and Marathon 
County — like other regions 
in Wisconsin — are contem-
plating new ways and undergo-
ing visible change in some cases. 
The board of directors for the 
Wisconsin Technology Coun-
cil had a chance to witness such 

transformation in a recent work-
ing visit to the city.

It won’t happen elsewhere 
without a sense of purpose, how-
ever.

“What is happening right now 
in rural Wisconsin scares me,” 
said Dave Eckmann, who leads 
the Wausau chamber, which 
extends into Marathon County. 
He cited demographic trends, 
healthcare access, support for 
education and child-care options 
for working families as leading 
examples.

Rather than wring his hands, 
however, Eckmann and others 
have pursued a “grow our own” 
plan that seeks to build on exist-
ing civic and natural strengths. 
A nationally known kayak 
course traverses parts of down-
town Wausau; Wisconsin’s sec-
ond-highest peak looms on the 
horizon; and new businesses, 
mostly small, are cropping up in 
revitalized areas.

The city is also gaining a rep-
utation for being an under-the-
radar startup hub. Marketbeat.
com recently ranked 100 “hid-
den gem cities” for startups and 
Wausau was 63rd on the list, cit-
ing new companies in health-
care and manufacturing, as well 
as the local support system and 
cost of living. Oshkosh and Ste-
vens Point were 73rd and 74th, 

respectively, on the same list.
Access to capital is the lifeblood 

for young companies. The Tech 
Council board meeting featured 
leaders from all five recipient 
funds that make up the 2-month-
old “Wisconsin Innovation 
Fund.” That is a public and private 
fund-of-funds set up through 
the Wisconsin Economic Devel-
opment Corp. Those five funds 
have collectively made a half-
dozen investments thus far under 
a directive to look for deals in 
underserved areas.

With Competitive Wisconsin 
Inc. as a partner, the chamber has 
launched a “Rural Resurgence” 
project to examine some of the 
“scary” trends and statistics cited 
by Eckmann, with an eye toward 
offering solutions — much like 
“The Wausau Group” at the turn 
of the 20th century.

Attracting and retaining work-
force is among them, which is 
why focusing on “placemaking” 
is among the strategies. People 
won’t come or stay without good 
reasons. Healthcare assets and 
schools, both K-12 and higher 
education, are also part of the 
answer. In Wausau’s case, it has 
both a two-year campus tied to 
UW-Stevens Point and North-
central Technical College, which 
offers degrees, certificates and 
other training in most of the 

businesses and industries indige-
nous to the region.

The toughest nut to crack may 
be healthcare, which has huge 
challenges nationally but espe-
cially in rural America. UW-Eau 
Claire Chancellor Jim Schmidt 
was on hand in Wausau to out-
line the “Rural Health Innova-
tion Alliance” project, which was 
launched in the Chippewa Valley 
with the goal of spreading ideas 
and best practices nationwide if 
not beyond.

Calling it a “sandbox” for ideas 
and experiments, Schmidt said 
the growing alliance will focus on 
efficiencies, access and technol-
ogies that can change healthcare 
delivery today.

“The economics of health-
care are failing everyone,” said 
Schmidt, who noted rural areas 
are ripe for health delivery 
options.

As I noted in a May column, 
Wisconsin is a state with two 
economies — one largely urban 
and more prosperous, the other 
predominantly rural and chal-
lenged. It need not be that way. As 
was true more than a century ago, 
don’t underestimate the ability of 
small groups of people to make 
things better.

Still is president of the Wisconsin Technol-
ogy Council. He can be reached at news@
wisconsintechnologycouncil.com.

INSIDE WISCONSIN

Building Wisconsin’s rural, small city 
economies will need mix of solutions

Cambridge News and Deerfield Independent

Jul
25

2024

Page
A04
Clip

resized
69%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.50/98



by Tom Still

Insidee
Wiscooooonnnnssssin
Inside 
Wisconsin
Inside 
Wisconsin
Inside 
Wisconsin
Inside 
Wisconsin

madison – A black-and-white 
photograph on an office wall at 
the Greater Wausau Chamber of  
Commerce depicts civic leaders 
behind the economic change shaking 
that Wisconsin River city more than 
a century ago. It also speaks to the 
future – not only for Wausau, but 
similar communities in the state.

 Nine members of  “The Wausau 
Group,” mainly lumbermen and 
other business executives, came 
together as the lumber trade was 
fading to envision how to keep 
the city and region thriving. The 
core answer was attracting more 
diverse manufacturing and emerging 
businesses, such as insurance and even 
specialty crops such as ginseng. Some 
of  their names remain tied to Wausau 
institutions today: D.C. Everest and 
Cyrus Yawkey are examples.

 Economic dynamism means 
nothing stays the same forever, so 
Wausau and Marathon County 
– like other regions in Wisconsin – 
are contemplating new ways and 
undergoing visible change in some 
cases. The board of  directors for the 
Wisconsin Technology Council had a 
chance to witness such transformation 
in a recent working visit to the city.

 It won’t happen elsewhere without 
a sense of  purpose, however.

 “What is happening right now 
in rural Wisconsin scares me,” said 
Dave Eckmann, who leads the 
Wausau chamber, which extends 
into Marathon County. He cited 
demographic trends, healthcare 
access, support for education and 
child-care options for working families 
as leading examples. 

 Rather than wring his hands, 
however, Eckmann and others have 
pursued a “grow our own” plan 
that seeks to build on existing civic 
and natural strengths. A nationally 

known kayak course traverses parts 
of  downtown Wausau; Wisconsin’s 
second-highest peak looms on the 
horizon; and new businesses, mostly 
small, are cropping up in revitalized 
areas.

 The city is also gaining a 
reputation for being an under-the-
radar startup hub. Marketbeat.com 
recently ranked 100 “hidden gem 
cities” for startups and Wausau was 
63rd on the list, citing new companies 
in healthcare and manufacturing, 
as well as the local support system 
and cost of  living. Oshkosh and 
Stevens Point were 73rd and 74th, 
respectively, on the same list.

 Access to capital is the lifeblood 
for young companies. The Tech 
Council board meeting featured 

that make up the two-month-old 
“Wisconsin Innovation Fund.” That is 
a public and private fund-of-funds set 
up through the Wisconsin Economic 

have collectively made a half-dozen 
investments thus far under a directive 
to look for deals in underserved areas.

 With Competitive Wisconsin 
Inc. as a partner, the chamber has 
launched a “Rural Resurgence” 
project to examine some of  the 
“scary” trends and statistics cited 
by Eckmann, with an eye toward 

Wausau Group” at the turn of  the 
20th century.

 At t rac t ing  and re ta in ing 
workforce is among them, which is 
why focusing on “placemaking” is 
among the strategies. People won’t 
come or stay without good reasons. 
Healthcare assets and schools, both 
K-12 and higher education, are also 
part of  the answer. In Wausau’s case, 
it has both a two-year campus tied to 
UW-Stevens Point and Northcentral 
Technical College, which offers 
degrees, certificates and other 
training in most of  the businesses and 
industries indigenous to the region.

 The toughest nut to crack may 
be healthcare, which has huge 
challenges nationally but especially 
in rural America. UW-Eau Claire 
Chancellor Jim Schmidt was on 
hand in Wausau to outline the “Rural 
Health Innovation Alliance” project, 
which was launched in the Chippewa 
Valley with the goal of  spreading ideas 
and best practices nationwide if  not 
beyond.

 Calling it a “sandbox” for ideas 
and experiments, Schmidt said 
the growing alliance will focus on 

that can change healthcare delivery 
today. “The economics of  healthcare 
are failing everyone,” said Schmidt, 
who noted rural areas are ripe for 
health delivery options.

 As I noted in a May column, 
Wisconsin is  a state with two 
economies – one largely urban 
and more prosperous, the other 
predominantly rural and challenged. 
It need not be that way. As was true 
more than a century ago, don’t 
underestimate the ability of  small 
groups of  people to make things 
better.

 Still is president of  the Wisconsin 
Technology Council. He can be reached at 
news@wisconsintechnologycouncil.com.

Building Wisconsin’s rural, small city 
economies need mix of solutions

Lancaster, Grant County Herald Independent

Jul
25

2024

Page
A008

Clip
resized

54%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.51/98



TOM STILL
Wisconsin Technology Council

WAUSAU, Wis. — A black-and-
white photograph on an office wall at 
the Greater Wausau Chamber of Com-
merce depicts civic leaders behind 
the economic change shak-
ing that Wisconsin River city 
more than a century ago. It also 
speaks to the future — not only 
for Wausau, but similar com-
munities in the state.

Nine members of “The 
Wausau Group,” mainly lum-
bermen and other business 
executives, came together as 
the lumber trade was fading to 
envision how to keep the city 
and region thriving. The core answer 
was attracting more diverse manufac-
turing and emerging businesses, such as 
insurance and even specialty crops such 
as ginseng. Some of their names remain 
tied to Wausau institutions today: D.C. 
Everest and Cyrus Yawkey are exam-
ples.

Economic dynamism means nothing 
stays the same forever, so Wausau and 
Marathon County — like other regions 
in Wisconsin — are contemplating new 

ways and undergoing visible change in 
some cases. The board of directors for 
the Wisconsin Technology Council had 
a chance to witness such transforma-
tion in a recent working visit to the city.

It won’t happen elsewhere without a 
sense of purpose, however.

“What is happening right 
now in rural Wisconsin scares 
me,” said Dave Eckmann, 
who leads the Wausau cham-
ber, which extends into Mara-
thon County. He cited demo-
graphic trends, healthcare 
access, support for education 
and child-care options for 
working families as leading 
examples.

Rather than wring his 
hands, however, Eckmann and oth-
ers have pursued a “grow our own” plan 
that seeks to build on existing civic 
and natural strengths. A nationally 
known kayak course traverses parts of 
downtown Wausau; Wisconsin’s sec-
ond-highest peak looms on the hori-
zon; and new businesses, mostly small, 
are cropping up in revitalized areas.

The city is also gaining a reputation 
for being an under-the-radar startup 
hub. Marketbeat.com recently ranked 

100 “hidden gem cities” for startups 
and Wausau was 63rd on the list, cit-
ing new companies in healthcare and 
manufacturing, as well as the local sup-
port system and cost of living. Oshkosh 
and Stevens Point were 73rd and 74th, 
respectively, on the same list.

Access to capital is the lifeblood for 
young companies. The Tech Council 
board meeting featured leaders from 
all five recipient funds that make up 
the 2-month-old “Wisconsin Innova-
tion Fund.” That is a public and private 
fund-of-funds set up through the Wis-
consin Economic Development Corp. 
Those five funds have collectively made 
a half-dozen investments thus far under 
a directive to look for deals in under-
served areas.

With Competitive Wisconsin Inc. as 
a partner, the chamber has launched a 
“Rural Resurgence” project to exam-
ine some of the “scary” trends and sta-
tistics cited by Eckmann, with an eye 
toward offering solutions — much like 
“The Wausau Group” at the turn of the 
20th century.

Attracting and retaining workforce is 
among them, which is why focusing on 
“placemaking” is among the strategies. 
People won’t come or stay without good 

reasons. Healthcare assets and schools, 
both K-12 and higher education, are 
also part of the answer. In Wausau’s 
case, it has both a two-year campus 
tied to UW-Stevens Point and North-
central Technical College, which offers 
degrees, certificates and other training 
in most of the businesses and industries 
indigenous to the region.

The toughest nut to crack may be 
healthcare, which has huge challenges 
nationally but especially in rural Amer-
ica. UW-Eau Claire Chancellor Jim 
Schmidt was on hand in Wausau to out-
line the “Rural Health Innovation Alli-
ance” project, which was launched 
in the Chippewa Valley with the goal 
of spreading ideas and best practices 
nationwide if not beyond.

Calling it a “sandbox” for ideas and 
experiments, Schmidt said the grow-
ing alliance will focus on efficiencies, 
access and technologies that can change
healthcare delivery today.

“The economics of healthcare are 
failing everyone,” said Schmidt, who 
noted rural areas are ripe for health 
delivery options.

As I noted in a May column, Wis-
consin is a state with two economies 
— one largely urban and more pros-
perous, the other predominantly rural 
and challenged. It need not be that way. 
As was true more than a century ago, 
don’t underestimate the ability of small 
groups of people to make things better.

Still is president of the Wisconsin Technology 
Council. He can be reached at news@wisconsin-
technologycouncil.com.

INSIDE WISCONSIN

Building Wisconsin’s rural, small city 
economies will need mix of solutions

TOM  

STILL

Jul
25 2024 Page

A04
Clip

resized
80%

Waterloo, The Courier

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.52/98



TOM STILL
Wisconsin Technology Council

WAUSAU, Wis. — A 
black-and-white photo-
graph on an office wall 
at the Greater Wausau 
Chamber of Commerce 
depicts civic leaders 
behind the economic 
change shaking that Wis-
consin River city more 
than a century ago. It 
also speaks to the future 
— not only for Wausau, 
but similar communities 
in the state.

Nine members of “The 
Wausau Group,” mainly 
lumbermen and other 
business executives, 
came together as the 
lumber trade was fading 
to envision how to keep 
the city and region thriv-
ing. The core answer 
was attracting more 
diverse manufactur-
ing and emerging busi-
nesses, such as insurance 
and even specialty crops 
such as ginseng. Some of 
their names remain tied 
to Wausau institutions 

today: D.C. Everest and 
Cyrus Yawkey are exam-
ples.

Economic dyna-
mism means nothing 
stays the same forever, 
so Wausau and Mar-
athon County — like 
other regions in Wiscon-
sin — are contemplat-
ing new ways and under-
going visible change in 
some cases. The board of 
directors for the Wiscon-
sin Technology Council 
had a chance to witness 
such transformation in 

a recent working visit to 
the city.

It won’t happen else-
where without a sense of 
purpose, however.

“What is happening 
right now in rural Wis-
consin scares me,” said 
Dave Eckmann, who 
leads the Wausau cham-
ber, which extends into 
Marathon County. He 
cited demographic 
trends, healthcare access, 
support for education 
and child-care options 
for working families as 
leading examples.

Rather than wring his 
hands, however, Eck-
mann and others have 
pursued a “grow our 
own” plan that seeks to 
build on existing civic 
and natural strengths. A 
nationally known kayak 
course traverses parts of 
downtown Wausau; Wis-
consin’s second-highest 
peak looms on the hori-
zon; and new businesses, 
mostly small, are crop-
ping up in revitalized 
areas.

The city is also gaining 
a reputation for being an 
under-the-radar startup 
hub. Marketbeat.com 
recently ranked 100 
“hidden gem cities” for 
startups and Wausau 
was 63rd on the list, cit-
ing new companies in 
healthcare and manufac-
turing, as well as the local 
support system and cost 
of living. Oshkosh and 
Stevens Point were 73rd 
and 74th, respectively, 
on the same list.

Access to capital is 
the lifeblood for young 
companies. The Tech 
Council board meeting 

featured leaders from all 
five recipient funds that 
make up the 2-month-
old “Wiscon-
sin Innovation 
Fund.” That is a 
public and pri-
vate fund-of-
funds set up 
through the 
Wisconsin Eco-
nomic Devel-
opment Corp. 
Those five 
funds have col-
lectively made a 
half-dozen investments 
thus far under a direc-
tive to look for deals in 
underserved areas.

With Competitive 
Wisconsin Inc. as a part-
ner, the chamber has 
launched a “Rural Resur-
gence” project to exam-
ine some of the “scary” 
trends and statistics cited 
by Eckmann, with an eye 
toward offering solu-
tions — much like “The 
Wausau Group” at the 
turn of the 20th century.

Attracting and retain-
ing workforce is among 
them, which is why 
focusing on “placemak-
ing” is among the strate-
gies. People won’t come 
or stay without good 
reasons. Healthcare 
assets and schools, both 
K-12 and higher edu-
cation, are also part of 
the answer. In Wausau’s 
case, it has both a two-
year campus tied to 
UW-Stevens Point and 
Northcentral Techni-
cal College, which offers 
degrees, certificates and 
other training in most 
of the businesses and 
industries indigenous to 
the region.

The toughest nut to 
crack may be health-
care, which has huge 

challenges 
nationally but 
especially in 
rural Amer-
ica. UW-Eau 
Claire Chancel-
lor Jim Schmidt 
was on hand in 
Wausau to out-
line the “Rural 
Health Inno-
vation Alli-
ance” project, 

which was launched in 
the Chippewa Valley 
with the goal of spread-
ing ideas and best prac-
tices nationwide if not 
beyond.

Calling it a “sandbox” 
for ideas and experi-
ments, Schmidt said the 
growing alliance will 
focus on efficiencies, 
access and technologies 
that can change health-
care delivery today.

“The economics of 
healthcare are failing 
everyone,” said Schmidt, 
who noted rural areas 
are ripe for health deliv-
ery options.

As I noted in a May 
column, Wisconsin is a 
state with two economies
— one largely urban and 
more prosperous, the 
other predominantly 
rural and challenged. 
It need not be that way. 
As was true more than a 
century ago, don’t under-
estimate the ability of 
small groups of people to 
make things better.

Still is president of the Wiscon-
sin Technology Council. He can 
be reached at news@wisconsin-
technologycouncil.com.

INSIDE WISCONSIN

Building Wisconsin’s rural, small city economies will need mix of solutions

TOM 

STILL

Milton Courier

Jul
26

2024

Page
A05
Clip

resized
58%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.53/98



TOM STILL
Wisconsin Technology Council

WAUSAU, Wis. — A black-
and-white photograph on 
an office wall at the Greater 
Wausau Chamber of Commerce 
depicts civic leaders behind the 
economic change shaking that 
Wisconsin River city more than 
a century ago. It also speaks 
to the future — not only for 
Wausau, but similar communi-
ties in the state.

Nine members of “The 
Wausau Group,” mainly lum-
bermen and other business 
executives, came together as 
the lumber trade was fading to 
envision how to keep the city 
and region thriving. The core 
answer was attracting more 
diverse manufacturing and 

emerging businesses, such as 
insurance and even specialty 
crops such as ginseng. Some 
of their names remain tied to 
Wausau institutions today: D.C. 
Everest and Cyrus Yawkey are 
examples.

Economic dynamism means 
nothing stays the same for-
ever, so Wausau and Marathon 
County — like other regions in 
Wisconsin — are contemplating 
new ways and undergoing vis-
ible change in some cases. The 
board of directors for the Wis-
consin Technology Council had 
a chance to witness such trans-
formation in a recent working 
visit to the city.

It won’t happen elsewhere 
without a sense of purpose, 
however.

“What is happening right 

now in rural Wisconsin scares 
me,” said Dave Eckmann, who 
leads the Wausau chamber, 
which extends into Marathon 
County. He cited demographic 
trends, healthcare access, sup-
port for education and child-
care options for working fami-
lies as leading examples.

Rather than wring his hands, 
however, Eckmann and others 
have pursued a “grow our own” 
plan that seeks to build on exist-
ing civic and natural strengths. 
A nationally known kayak 
course traverses parts of down-
town Wausau; Wisconsin’s sec-
ond-highest peak looms on the 
horizon; and new businesses, 
mostly small, are cropping up in 
revitalized areas.

INSIDE WISCONSIN

Building Wisconsin’s rural, small city 
economies will need mix of solutions

More STILL   |   A5

Jul
26 2024 Page

A04
Clip

resized
115%

Sun Prairie, The Star

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.54/98



The city is also gaining 
a reputation for being an 
under-the-radar startup hub. 
Marketbeat.com recently 
ranked 100 “hidden gem cit-
ies” for startups and Wausau 
was 63rd on the list, citing 
new companies in healthcare 
and manufacturing, as well 
as the local support system 
and cost of living. Oshkosh 
and Stevens Point were 73rd 
and 74th, respectively, on the 
same list.

Access to capital is the life-
blood for young companies. 
The Tech Council board 
meeting featured leaders 

from all five recipient funds 
that make up the 2-month-
old “Wisconsin Innovation 
Fund.” That is a public and 
private fund-of-funds set up 
through the Wisconsin Eco-
nomic Development Corp. 
Those five funds have col-
lectively made a half-dozen 
investments thus far under a 
directive to look for deals in 
underserved areas.

With Competitive Wis-
consin Inc. as a partner, 
the chamber has launched 
a “Rural Resurgence” proj-
ect to examine some of the 
“scary” trends and statistics 
cited by Eckmann, with an 
eye toward offering solutions 
— much like “The Wausau 

Group” at the turn of the 
20th century.

Attracting and retain-
ing workforce is among 
them, which is why focus-
ing on “placemaking” is 
among the strategies. Peo-
ple won’t come or stay with-
out good reasons. Health-
care assets and schools, both 
K-12 and higher education, 
are also part of the answer. 
In Wausau’s case, it has both 
a two-year campus tied 
to UW-Stevens Point and 
Northcentral Technical Col-
lege, which offers degrees, 
certificates and other train-
ing in most of the businesses 
and industries indigenous to 
the region.

The toughest nut to crack 
may be healthcare, which has 
huge challenges nationally 
but especially in rural Amer-
ica. UW-Eau Claire Chan-
cellor Jim Schmidt was on 
hand in Wausau to outline 
the “Rural Health Innova-
tion Alliance” project, which 
was launched in the Chip-
pewa Valley with the goal 
of spreading ideas and best 
practices nationwide if not 
beyond.

Calling it a “sandbox” 
for ideas and experiments, 
Schmidt said the growing 
alliance will focus on effi-
ciencies, access and technol-
ogies that can change health-
care delivery today.

“The economics of health-
care are failing everyone,” 
said Schmidt, who noted 
rural areas are ripe for health 
delivery options.

As I noted in a May col-
umn, Wisconsin is a state 
with two economies — one 
largely urban and more pros-
perous, the other predomi-
nantly rural and challenged. 
It need not be that way. As 
was true more than a century
ago, don’t underestimate the 
ability of small groups of 
people to make things better.

Still is president of the Wiscon-
sin Technology Council. He can be 
reached at news@wisconsintechnol-
ogycouncil.com.

Still/from A4

Jul
26 2024 Page

A05
Clip

resized
80%

From
A04

Sun Prairie, The Star

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.55/98



WAUSAU, Wis. — A black-
and-white photograph on 
an office wall at the Greater 
Wausau Chamber of Com-
merce depicts civic leaders 
behind the economic change 
shaking that Wisconsin River 
city more than a cen-
tury ago. It also speaks 
to the future — not 
only for Wausau, but 
similar communities 
in the state.

Nine members 
of “The Wausau 
Group,” mainly lum-
bermen and other 
business executives, 
came together as the lumber 
trade was fading to envision 
how to keep the city and region 
thriving. The core answer was 
attracting more diverse manu-
facturing and emerging busi-
nesses, such as insurance and 
even specialty crops such as 
ginseng. Some of their names 
remain tied to Wausau institu-
tions today: D.C. Everest and 
Cyrus Yawkey are examples.

Economic dynamism means 
nothing stays the same for-
ever, so Wausau and Marathon 
County — like other regions in 
Wisconsin — are contemplat-
ing new ways and undergoing 
visible change in some cases. 
The board of directors for the 
Wisconsin Technology Coun-
cil had a chance to witness such 
transformation in a recent 
working visit to the city.

It won’t happen elsewhere 
without a sense of purpose, 
however.

“What is happening right 
now in rural Wisconsin scares 
me,” said Dave Eckmann, who 
leads the Wausau chamber, 
which extends into Marathon 
County. He cited demographic 
trends, healthcare access, sup-
port for education and child-
care options for working fami-
lies as leading examples.

Rather than wring his hands, 
however, Eckmann and oth-
ers have pursued a “grow our 
own” plan that seeks to build 
on existing civic and natural 
strengths. A nationally known 
kayak course traverses parts of 

downtown Wausau; 
Wisconsin’s sec-
ond-highest peak 
looms on the horizon; 
and new businesses, 
mostly small, are 
cropping up in revi-
talized areas.

The city is also 
gaining a reputation 
for being an under-

the-radar startup hub. Market-
beat.com recently ranked 100 
“hidden gem cities” for start-
ups and Wausau was 63rd on 
the list, citing new companies 
in healthcare and manufactur-
ing, as well as the local support 
system and cost of living. Osh-
kosh and Stevens Point were 
73rd and 74th, respectively, on 
the same list.

Access to capital is the life-
blood for young companies. 
The Tech Council board meet-
ing featured leaders from all 
five recipient funds that make 
up the 2-month-old “Wiscon-
sin Innovation Fund.” That is 
a public and private fund-of-
funds set up through the Wis-
consin Economic Develop-
ment Corp. Those five funds 
have collectively made a half-
dozen investments thus far 
under a directive to look for 
deals in underserved areas.

With Competitive Wiscon-
sin Inc. as a partner, the cham-
ber has launched a “Rural 
Resurgence” project to examine 
some of the “scary” trends and 
statistics cited by Eckmann, 
with an eye toward offering 
solutions — much like “The 
Wausau Group” at the turn of 
the 20th century.

Attracting and retaining 

workforce is among them, 
which is why focusing on 
“placemaking” is among the 
strategies. People won’t come 
or stay without good reasons. 
Healthcare assets and schools, 
both K-12 and higher educa-
tion, are also part of the answer. 
In Wausau’s case, it has both 
a two-year campus tied to 
UW-Stevens Point and North-
central Technical College, 
which offers degrees, certifi-
cates and other training in most
of the businesses and industries 
indigenous to the region.

The toughest nut to crack 
may be healthcare, which has 
huge challenges nationally 
but especially in rural Amer-
ica. UW-Eau Claire Chancel-
lor Jim Schmidt was on hand in 
Wausau to outline the “Rural 
Health Innovation Alliance” 
project, which was launched 
in the Chippewa Valley with 
the goal of spreading ideas and 
best practices nationwide if not 
beyond.

Calling it a “sandbox” 
for ideas and experiments, 
Schmidt said the growing alli-
ance will focus on efficiencies, 
access and technologies that 
can change healthcare deliv-
ery today.

“The economics of health-
care are failing everyone,” said 
Schmidt, who noted rural areas 
are ripe for health delivery 
options.

As I noted in a May column, 
Wisconsin is a state with two 
economies — one largely urban
and more prosperous, the other
predominantly rural and chal-
lenged. It need not be that way. 
As was true more than a cen-
tury ago, don’t underestimate 
the ability of small groups of 
people to make things better.

Tom Still is president of the Wisconsin 
Technology Council. He can be reached 
at news@wisconsintechnologycoun-
cil.com.

INSIDE WISCONSIN

Building Wisconsin’s rural, small city 
economies will need mix of solutions

TOM  

STILL

Waunakee Tribune

Jul
26

2024

Page
A04
Clip

resized
81%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.56/98



, , J y , $

Seven ladies from Clark County vie for ‘Fairest of the Fair’
By June Thompson
 The Clark County Fair 
will be held August 7 – 11 at 
the Clark County Fairgrounds 
in Neillsville. In years past, 
one lady will be crowned the 
“Fairest of the Fair.”   
     This year there are seven 
ladies from Clark County 
competing for the opportunity 
to be “Fairest of the Fair” for 
2024-2025. 
     “Fairest of the Fair” com-
mittee, Janalee Kapusta, Trena 
Abbott and Jaidyn Teschner, 
assisted the contestants, help-
ing them prepare for inter-
views and photos.
     “I would love the girls to be 

themselves and have fun with 
this amazing experience,” 
said Kapusta, coordinator 
of “Fairest of the Fair.” “No 
matter who walks away with 
a crown or who doesn’t, it 
shows incredible strength and 
courage to run for the ‘Fair-
est of the Fair.’ There are so 
many opportunities to grow as 
individuals, and I hope they 
take the opportunity to soak 
it all in.”
     Amanada Durrstein was a 
contestant for “Fairest of the 
Fair” last year (2023-2024) 
and placed as  rst attendant. 
She is a contestant again for 
“Fairest of the Fair.”   

 

June Thompson/Clark County Press
The Clark County Fair will be held Aug 7-11 at the Clark County Fairgrounds. Sev-
en contestants vie for the title of Fairest of the Fair. They are (l-r): Ruby Kilmer, 
Laela Scott, Aspen Hagen, Lizzy Reinart, Ella Raatz and Emma Moen.

     Durrstein is 20 years old. She 
is from Greenwood and was 
crowned Miss Greenwood 
2021-2022. 
     “I wanted to run again. I 
enjoy being royalty,” she said. 
“I want to encourage kids to 
try new things.”
 Durrstein works for 
PetSmart Veterinary Services 
in Wausau. Her goal is to be 
a veterinary technician. “I’d 
like to breed and train horses. 
I can continue to work and get 
hands-on experience.” Her 
sponsor is K & S Logistics 
& Carriers in Greenwood.
 Emma Moen is from 
Neillsville. She is 19 and a 
contestant for the “Fairest of 
the Fair.” If she is crowned, 
Moen would like to help her 
community and help at the 
fair. She attends University of 
Wisconsin-La Crosse, major-
ing in accounting. She works 
for Unity Bank in Neillsville. 
     “I like anything outside,” 

See FOF, page 3

Historic county 
bridge faces 

closure
By Edward DuBois

Th G d C
Bock had been informed 

th t t i ti f th

Jul
31 2024 Page

001
Clip

resized
61%

Neillsville, Clark County Press

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.57/98



h

t
b

p

t
t
h
w

N

m

v
m
h
w
t
n

FOF, continued from front page

she said. “Hiking, biking and 
snowboarding in winter.” 
Moen’s sponsor is Unity 
Bank.
 Aspen Hagen is from 
Loyal, and she is also 19. She 
is a contestant for the “Fair-
est of the Fair.” “I want to 
be an advocate for the Clark 
County Fair, share my fair 
stories, and inspire someone 
else to run for the “Fairest of 
the Fair,” she said. “I attend 
North Central Technical Col-
lege in Wausau. My majors 
are dairy science agriculture 
and business. I want to get a 
job in dairy nutrition.”
 Hagen’s goal is to raise 
dairy cows and continue 
to participate in the Clark 
County Fair. Her sponsor is 
Allied Cooperative.
 Ella Raatz is from Colby. 
She is 17 years old and a 
contestant for “Fairest of the 
Fair.” “I want to promote the 
small-town fair. We have a lot 
to offer,” said Raatz. “I want 
to help people get involved in 
the fair. I’ve grown up show-
ing projects at the fair.”
 Raatz enjoys photogra-
phy, and baking. She plans 
on attending the University 
of Madison or River Falls to 
study dairy science. “I hope to 
get a job in the dairy industry,” 
she said. Her sponsor is Ace 
Hardware.
 Ruby Kilmer is from 
Thorp and is 19 years old. 
She is another contestant for 
“Fairest of the Fair.” Kilmer 
was Miss Thorp in 2022-
2023.
 “I want to gain experi-
ence to help with social/
personal skills by meeting 

people through parades and 
events,” she said.   
     Kilmer is studying early 
childhood at the University 
of Wisconsin-Stevens Point. 
“I like kids; sometimes too 
much,” she said. Her hob-
bies are reading and cash 
crop. Kilmer’s sponsor is 
FairBridge Inn & Suites.
 Lizzy Reinart is from 
Neillsville and is 19 years old. 
She is a contestant for “Fairest 
of the Fair.” “I didn’t know 
much about the fair, but I’d 
like to promote all the events 
at the fair,” Reinart said. 
She likes photography and 
baking. Her goal as “Fairest 
of the Fair” is “making sure 
the fair is all promoted with 
more participation,” she said. 
“People can utilize their tal-
ents with arts and crafts.”   
 Reinart plans to attend 
Chippewa Valley Tech School 
and study paralegal. Her 
sponsor is Genteman Enter-
prises.
 Another contestant for 
“Fairest of the Fair is Laela 
Scott from Neillsville. She is 
17 years old. 
     “I would like to educate 
other communities about the 
Clark County Fair,” she said. 
Scott’s hobbies are archery, 
baking, cooking, reading his-
torical  ction, hiking,  kayak-
ing and training dogs. Her 
goal is to attend college and 
 gure out what she wants to 

pursue in the medical career. 
Her sponsor is Grit Nutrition.        
     The “Fairest of the Fair” 
coronation will be held 
Wednesday, Aug. 7, at 7 
p.m. at the Clark County 
Fairgrounds. 

Neillsville, Clark County Press

Jul
31

2024

Page
003
Clip

resized
101%

From
001

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.58/98



Edgar, The Record Review

Jul
31

2024

Page
005
Clip

resized
55%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.59/98



Clark County Fairest of the Fair candidates

Loyal, Tribune Record Gleaner

Jul
31

2024

Page
0024

Clip
resized

70%

Property of Wisconsin News Tracker and members of the Wisconsin Newspaper Association.60/98



Press Clippings and Social Media Posts – July 1, 2024 – August 5, 2024 
 

National Science Foundation Hi-TEC Conference was held June 29 – August 1.  NTC was mentioned 
during a presentation at the conference.  

 

 

  

61/98



 

 

 

 

NTC Mobile Lab brings the classroom to rural communities 
By Isabella Laufenberg 
Published: Aug. 1, 2024 at 6:49 PM CDT 
WAUSAU, Wis. (WSAW) - Northcentral Technical College (NTC) has a new tool to make learning more 
accessible in our community, a mobile classroom! 

Their Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA) learning lab is completely mobile. It can hold up to 10 students at 
a time for a five-week course. Students can do the entire class out of the mobile lab, along with the state 
testing after the course ends. 

“Everything you need to be a Certified Nursing Assistant, you can do in the mobile lab, everything from 
the online learning to the actual hands-on skills,” Mason Heldt, NTC’s Learning Manager of Health 
Sciences and Community Services, said. 

The lab travels to rural communities like Boulder and Abbotsford for free thanks to a grant from the 
Wisconsin Technical College System. The $72,000 Industry Core Grant allowed NTC to equip the lab with 
all the hands-on learning tools students will need. 

62/98



“Through our grant funding, we cover all of the costs to bring the mobile lab to the rural communities. 
we can run 100% out of the mobile lab with water and electricity,“ Heldt said. 

The grant assists with the education of 96 students over two years. Staff hopes this will open up careers 
in health science for more rural students. 

“The mobile lab gives the college an opportunity to serve our rural area in ways we haven’t served them 
before,” Heldt said. 

The goal of the lab is to make healthcare careers accessible to rural communities. 

“It offers [students] the opportunity to get the same learning experiences that people would get on our 
campuses, but in their own community,” Heldt explained. “They can help the people in their 
communities and serve them better.” 

The next class will start on Tuesday in Rib Lake. Then, the lab will travel to Merrill. NTC hopes to expand 
its mobile offerings to other health science programs in the future. 

To apply or for more information, you can get to NTC’s website here. 

  

63/98



 

Northcentral Technical College Breaks Ground On 
Regional Forensic Science Center 

By Thomas SchumacherJul 23, 2024 | 12:49 PM 
 

NTC Forensic Center Groundbreaking - Photo by MWC's Tom Schumacher 

WAUSAU, WI (WSAU) – The first Forensic Science Center in central Wisconsin officially broke ground on 
Tuesday morning at the Northcentral Technical College Wausau campus. 

The groundbreaking was attended by community figures from across the area, including state Senator 
Cory Tomczyk, state Assemblyman Pat Synder, Assemblyman John Spiros, and Marathon County 
Administrator Lance Leonard, who each got a chance to speak about what the center will mean not only 
for the college but for the county as a whole. 

Administrator Leonard spoke about the facility and what it will mean for the area, saying, “This will be 
the eighth facility that provides Wisconsinites with forensic services.” Most of those facilities are really 
located in the southeastern part of the state and the east side, so there is nothing for our northern 
Wisconsin partners, and we’re proud to bring this facility to not only serve the needs of Marathon 
County and our immediate neighbors but also our friends and neighbors to the north in the upper 
peninsula of Michigan.” 

“The community support that we’ve had here today is similar to the support we’ve received throughout 
the time that this project has been in the works. It’s truly the product of a lot of collaboration amongst 
core partners in the community in general. We’re just really excited to see this project become a 
reality,” Leonard continued. 

The facility, which is set to open in the summer of 2025, will provide numerous services to the county, 
making it “more than just a morgue,” including offering local patients the chance to access life-saving 
tissue donation in the area instead of having to travel to Madison or Milwaukee to receive care. 

  

64/98



 

 

 

WAUSAU — Marathon County officially broke ground for its Regional Forensic Science Center today, July 
23, making it the eighth facility in the state to offer forensic autopsies. It is also the first such facility in 
north central Wisconsin. 

The new center, on Northcentral Technical College’s Wausau campus, will provide critical support to law 
enforcement and coroner/medical examiner offices across at least 28 counties in Wisconsin and the 
Upper Peninsula of Michigan, according to a Marathon County Government news release. 

65/98



In addition to the core services required of coroner/medical examiner offices, which include forensic 
autopsies, consultation services and expert testimony, the facility will feature a dedicated tissue 
donation suite, a family consultation room, and a community grief garden. Once complete, this center 
will house the Marathon County Medical Examiner’s office, which is currently on West Street in Wausau. 

In partnership with Northcentral Technical College and the Medical College of Wisconsin, the center will 
also serve as a cornerstone for education. It will play a vital role in addressing workforce needs in 
forensic science, public safety, health care and funeral services. It will provide students with real 
industry experience through an educational observation suite equipped with advanced autopsy viewing 
technology. 

Most importantly, the center will improve services to families, including the ability to better honor 
religious and cultural practices, aiding in the families’ journey toward healing. 

Construction is expected to be completed in July 2025, with Miron Construction Co., Inc. serving as the 
construction manager and Venture Architects serving as the architect. 

 

  

66/98



 

 

 

WAUSAU, Wis. (WAOW) -- Marathon County has officially broken ground on a new forensics center on 
the grounds of Northcentral Technical College in Wausau. 

It will be known as the Marathon County Regional Forensic Science Center, and is set to help law 
enforcement operations in several northern Wisconsin counties as well as Michigan's Upper Peninsula. 

Once built, the center will become the first in north-central Wisconsin to offer forensic autopsies. 

Auto (225p) 
A common theme in conception has been deeming it "more than a morgue," since it's also set to help 
address workforce needs and offer educational programs. 

67/98



"These services are truly important, they're critical services for county government, but also providing 
that access to life-saving tissue donation is something that is going to separate this facility from other 
facilities in the state," said Marathon County Administrator Lance Leonhard. 

Several politicians across the state and local donors helped secure funding for the facility. 

It's anticipated the new building will be open by July 2025. 

  

68/98



 

 

By Samuel Dehring 
Published: Jul. 23, 2024 at 4:50 PM CDT|Updated: Jul. 23, 2024 at 8:46 PM CDT 
 

WAUSAU, Wis. (WSAW) - Marathon County is breaking ground on a new Regional Forensic Science 
Center at Northcentral Technical College in Wausau. The new facility will give students hands-on 
experience in working with forensic autopsies, and much more. 

This will be the 8th Forensic Center in the state of Wisconsin and more importantly, it’s the first one in 
northern Wisconsin. As previously reported, the new facility is estimated to cost around $15 million. 

NTC emphasizes giving students hands-on experience before they enter the workforce. This new facility 
will allow students to observe how forensic autopsies work. 

“Witness forensic autopsy being conducted, have access to the latest and greatest technology that will 
be there as well. Really giving them a leg up when they graduate and they go into the workforce,” NTC 
President Dr. Jeannie Worden explained. 

69/98



It’s not just forensic autopsies students will be able to gain access to though. 

“We’re going to expand access to life-saving tissue donation resources in the state,” Marathon County 
Administrator Lance Leonhard said. “Dramatically expanding educational opportunities across a wide 
array of fields, from law enforcement to medicine.” 

There will also be grief counseling services for students and people throughout the community. 

“Loved ones can come and actually understand, once the autopsy is done, and have a place to actually 
be consoled,” Marathon County Board Chairman Kurt Gibbs said. 

The new facility will provide clinical support to law enforcement and medical examiner offices. Dr. 
Worden says this will be beneficial for both students and the community. 

 
FILE - Rendering of the new Forensic Science Center in Wausau.(Marathon County) 
“We’re going to learn as we go, and we see multiple intersections at NTC, again, medical college, our K-
12, and UWSP as well,” she said. 

The designs for the interior part of the building were just approved and the building is set to be 
completed in late summer of 2025. 

 

  

70/98



 

 

71/98



72/98



 
By Danielle Nauman | danielle.n@dairystar.com 
ATHENS, Wis. — Savana Mata is not the average dairy farm worker, and she was not the average 
student in her program at Northcentral Technical College. 

“I have always loved cows,” Mata said. “Not just the animal, I was really curious about the dairy 
industry, but I have zero background. The closest I had ever been to agriculture was the dairy section of 
the grocery store. I have no idea where that interest came from.” 

Mata is a native of Los Angeles, California, where she began her post-secondary education studying 
biology and philosophy at Loyola Marymount University, with plans to pursue a career in neuroscience. 

“While I was in school, I always had dairy in the back of my mind, but I never thought I’d actually do 
anything with it,” Mata said. “Then during my junior (year) I met someone that came from a dairy farm, 
and after asking few questions, I realized it wasn’t just something in the back of my mind. I was 
fascinated by what I heard. I decided then after I graduated from Loyola, I was going into dairy.” 

A Google search led Mata to visit the campus at Northcentral Technical College, where she saw her first 
cow at the school’s robotic dairy. Mata was sold on the school and enrolled. She obtained her 
associate’s degree in dairy science and agricultural business in May. 

73/98



“When I started, I was embarrassed about having no experience,” Mata said. “I knew everyone else in 
my classes would have that background knowledge.” 

Addressing both Mata’s concerns about her experience and her need for employment, the school 
facilitated a job for her in August 2022 working at Miltrim Farms Inc., in Athens. There she experienced 
dairy industry in the farm’s robotic milking facility, home to 1,800 cows, working under the barn 
manager, Jessica Pralle-Trimner. 

“I was so overwhelmed coming in here my first day,” Mata said. “I had never even touched a cow. I was 
so scared — they were so big! I didn’t know how I would react being in a dairy with all the smells. I had 
never been around manure or anything, and I would get queasy sometimes during my internships in 
hospitals around blood and needles.” 

Mata said the support of those around her helped her forge ahead. 

“I didn’t know how to do anything; I didn’t know any of the vocabulary,” Mata said. “I had to ask so 
many questions, but I learned so quickly because they made me feel so comfortable. They put me under 
a cow pretty much right away working with Mary Phillips, the herdsperson.” 

Mata said her fears began to be allayed as she learned new skills. 

“They taught me how to IV a cow and that didn’t bother me; it’s so different from a person,” Mata said. 
“I feel much better in this industry, it’s so hands-on. I didn’t have to go to school for eight years before I 
could come in and do something. I was helping cows right away because of what Jessica and Mary 
taught me.” 

Mata said not every skill came quickly to her. 

“I really struggled learning how to strip a cow to take samples; I couldn’t get the hang of it,” Mata said. 
“I had to keep asking Mary how exactly I should hold the teat, where I should squeeze. I felt like it had 
never had to be explained to anyone before. To IV a cow, I understood the science, but I had a hard time 
at first hitting the vein. When it came to breeding, it took me forever to find the cervix and be able to 
hold on to it.” 

After a couple of months of learning in the robotic barn, Mata began working in the maternity area at 
Miltrim, a job she said she loved. 

“It was just a whole new area, a whole new set of skills,” Mata said. “I had never touched a calf or pulled 
a calf, and I was doing that on my own by my second or third day.” 

After nearly a year of working at Miltrim, Mata secured another part-time job working at Duane 
Blaubach’s Athens dairy farm in July 2023. The Blaubachs milk 160 cows in a tie-stall barn. There Mata 
was able to learn about another management style. 

“I learned about milking cows backwards — first with the robots, then with the tie-stall barn,” Mata 
said. “I just love every aspect about dairy farming I have learned.” 

74/98



In addition to working at Miltrim and Blaubachs, Mata works at Merrill Equipment Company, where she 
is learning about the design work involved with building livestock housing. Later this summer, she will 
begin working full-time at Merrill Equipment Company, while continuing to work every other weekend 
at Miltrim as well as milking evenings and weekends at the Blaubachs. 

“I love that everyone has been so supportive of me and everything I want to learn,” Mata said. 
“Everyone is willing to work with my crazy schedule. They all understand I’m trying to catch up on a 
lifetime of learning in the dairy industry.” 

Mata has also taken the position of executive coordinator for the Marathon County Partnership for 
Progressive Agriculture, spearheading agricultural promotion efforts throughout Marathon County, 
including coordinating the annual dairy breakfast, the Ag Adventures Tent at the Wisconsin Valley Fair, 
the Farm City Dinner and planning a golf scramble. 

“I love talking to farmers and hearing their stories,” Mata said. 

Mata has embraced advocating for her new-found passion, sharing her experiences with students at 
Loyola Marymount each semester. 

“I try to explain things from my experiences, to bridge that gap between the farm and consumers in a 
safe way,” Mata said. “I have come to love this industry. Nothing I’ve experienced has turned me away.” 

With nearly two years of experience in the dairy industry, Mata said she knows she still has a lot to 
learn, and despite some tough days, her desire to learn has not wavered. 

“Everyone has had so much faith in me, telling me that one day I’ll get it, that it just takes time,” Mata 
said. “That has kept me going. If I didn’t have that support, I don’t know if I’d still be in dairy today. I 
want to have an impact on the dairy industry.”

75/98



      

76/98



      

77/98



    

78/98



   

79/98



    

80/98



    

81/98



   

82/98



   

83/98



    

84/98



    

85/98



   

86/98



    

 

87/98



   

88/98



    

89/98



        

90/98



         

91/98



         
92/98



     

93/98



     
94/98



     

95/98



        

96/98



Date DMA
Sort By

Export to Excel » Ascending
Order:

Reports

Name Report

WAOW (ABC) 7/5/2024 5:24:28 PM
Wausau, WI
News 9 WAOW at 5PM
Local Viewership: 20,053 Local Publicity Value: $464.23
you can replace multiple cleaning products. try dawn powerwash. northcentral
technical college has done something. the school has never done before. hold a
dual language course. the three-day summit are dealt with lumber grating
features in both spanish and english as the instructor presents the lesson,
another translated into spanish grants from the forest products lab in madison
and the dnr pay for the translators and textbooks for that course. the hope is
to provide future educational opportunities at the number at a number of
spanish speaking. workers continues to grow.

WSAW (CBS) 7/23/2024 5:10:43 PM
Wausau, WI
NewsChannel 7 @ 5
Local Viewership: 6,711 Local Publicity Value: $247.65
this will be the 8th forensic center in the state of wisconsin. and more
importantly -- it's the first one in northern wisconsin -- and it's right here at
north central technical college. (nat pop) n-t-c emphasizes giving students the
hands-on experience before they enter the workforce. this new facility will
allow students to observe how forensic autopsies work. dr. jeannie worden,
president, northcentral technical college, "witness forensic autopsy being
conducted, have access to the latest and greatest technology that will be there
as well. really giving them a leg up when they graduate and they go into the
workforce." it's not just forensic autopsies students will be able to gain access
to. lance leonhard, county administrator, marathon county, "we're going to
expand access to life-saving tissue donation resources in the state.
dramatically expanding educational opportunities across a wide array of fields,
from law enforecement to medicine." there will also be grief counseling servies
for students and people throughout the community. kurt gibbs, chairman,
marathon

WSAW (CBS) 8/1/2024 6:16:48 PM
Wausau, WI
NewsChannel 7 @ 6
Local Viewership: 9,504 Local Publicity Value: $612.56
coursework. where it's heading to help out. northcentral technical college has a
new tool to make learning more accessibile in our community-- a mobile
classroom! newschannel 7's bella laufenberg takes us into the lab to get the
scoop. bella laufenberg, reporting "north central techincal college debuted their
mobile ceritifed nursing assisstant courses in march in abbotsford." the course
is held in their new the course is abbotsford." courses in march in abbotsford."
the course is held in their new mobile lab. it can hold up to ten students at a
time for a 5 week c-n-a course. they're able course. they're able to do the

8/5/24, 9:05 AM TVEyes Media Monitoring Suite - [Reports]

https://mms.tveyes.com/NetReport.aspx?ReportHash=6f96815dea8e7d9b70e5fc5425753496 1/297/98



entire class out of the mobile lab along with the state testing after the course
ends. mason heldt, learning mgr. of health sciences and community

WJFW (NBC) 8/2/2024 5:06:24 PM
Wausau, WI
Newswatch 12 at 5
Local Viewership: 5,334 Local Publicity Value: $179.99
attend one of 11 u-w system schools without having to pay tuition or fees. u-
w-madison and u-w-milwaukee separately operate their own tuition promise
programs. northcentral technical college in wausau has two new programs for
students in fall. they have a new respiratory therapy associate degree... where
students will learn to evaluate.. treat and manage patients with respiratory
illnesses and serious conditions that affect the heart and lungs. the second
program is funeral services associate degree. the fall semester begins august
26. wolf sightings in a northwoods town are worrying some residents...after
one family recently lost a pet.

Items in this report: 4

Total Local Viewership: 41,602
Total Local Market Publicity Value: $1,504.43

Copyright ©1999 - 2024 TVEyes, Inc. All rights reserved.
Questions, comments, or suggestions? Send us feedback.

Privacy Policy

8/5/24, 9:05 AM TVEyes Media Monitoring Suite - [Reports]

https://mms.tveyes.com/NetReport.aspx?ReportHash=6f96815dea8e7d9b70e5fc5425753496 2/298/98


	NTC Board Agenda-August 13, 2024-PUBLIC NOTICE
	Approval of President&apos;s 2024-2025 Goals
	TSS - Three-Year Facilities Plan 2025-2027
	2025-2027 Proposed NTC Three-Year Facilities Plan - Board Report Final Draft
	Approval of Board Policy 2.8_ Board Members Role
	Receipts + Expenditures
	Personnel Changes
	Advisory Meeting Minutes
	Upcoming Meetings + Events
	Good News

